IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALEFORNIA, ] CT No. SCD255519
Plaintiff, § DA No. ADY479

v,
: INDICTMENT

RONALD SELWYN GRUSD,

dob 05/06/46;

GONZALQO ERNESTO PAREDIS,
dob 02/06/56;

ALEXANDER KKIEV MARTINEZ,
dob 12/19/77,;

RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ,

dob 09/ 16/ 56;
Defendants
PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY
Defendant DNNA Testing Requirements
GRUSD, RONALD SELWYN : DNA sample required upon conviction
PAREDIES, GONZALO ERNESTO : DNA sample required upon conviction
MARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIEV DNA sample required upon conviction
MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARCIAL DNA sample required upon conviction

The Grand Jury of the County of San Dicgo, State of California, accuses the Defendant(s) of committing, in the Cou.nty of
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indictment, the following crime(s):

CHARGES

COUNT 1 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On or about December 16, 2012, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a
rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
money of otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or paticncs to perform or obrain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Wotkers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODL SECTION 3215.
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 2 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about December 28,2012, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEYZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a
rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
mofiey or othmw:sc as compensation or inducement for chcmng clients or patients to perform or obtin services or

benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compcnmtjon law, in violation of LABOR CODI SECTION 3215,

COUNT 3 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about March 13, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, pteference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money ot
otherwise, as compensation oy inducement for referring clients or patients to perform ot obrain services or benefits
putsuant to the California Workess' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 4 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about March 18, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZATO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINILZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other considesation whether in the form of money or
otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referying clients or patients to petform or obtain services ot benefits
putsuant-to the California Workers' Compensation law, in vielation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.

COUNT 5 - OFFLR DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSA’I’ION FOR REI‘ERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about June 7, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GON'ZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offet, dcliver, receive and accept a tebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise, as compensation o inducement for referring clients or paticnts to perform or obtain setvices or benefits
putsuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 6 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On or about June 10, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAT. MARTINFEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whethet in the form of money or
otherwise, as compensation ot inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benelfits

putsuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODIE SECTTON 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 7 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On of about June 11,2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a vebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discotint and other consideration whether in the form of money or

+ otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits
putsuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 8 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS '

On or about June 20, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNJESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINIZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINIEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
comumission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits
pursuant to the Catifornia Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODY SECTION 3215,

COUNT 9 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about August 30, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDIS, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
atherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients o perform or obtain setvices ot benefits
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODL SECTION 3215,

COUNT 10 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On of about September 4, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDTES,
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINIEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a
rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
money ot otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 11 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVIEE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about September 9, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDLS,
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a
rehate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
moncy ot otherwise, as'compcnsation or inducement for referring clients or patients to pesform or obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 12 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On or about September 12, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a -
rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of

money or otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or
benefits putsuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 13 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about September 17, 2013, RONALD SELWYN (JRUSD GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, _
ALEXANDER KIEV MAR TINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL \IARI INEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a
rebate, refund, commission, preference, pateonage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
money of otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain setvices or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 14 -OFFER, DELIVER RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPLNSA’I’ION FOR RETERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about December 11, 2013, RONALD SELMWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offet, deliver, receive and accept a
rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
. money ot otherwise, as compensation or inducement for refesring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or
benefits pursnant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in viclation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 15 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about December 17, 2013, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PARLDLS
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINFEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a
rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
morey ot otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODLL SECTION 3215.

COUNT 16 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEP1' COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On or about Match 11, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALLht\NDFR
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept 2 1ebate, tefund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or

othetwise, as compensation ot inducement for referring clients or patients to pérform or obtain services or benefits
pursuant to the California Wortkers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 17 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS _ ‘
On ot about May 1, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDIZR
KIEV MARTINIEZ, and RUBLEN MARCIAL MARTINLEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a tebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise, as compensation ot inducement for referting clients ot paticnts to petform or obtain services or benefits
pursuant to the California Workers” Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.

COUNT 18 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fait to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another petrson to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a persen's inidal and continued right

and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person
was entitled (AmTrust Notth Ametica-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(5)(3).

COUNT 19 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEYZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another petson to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a peyson's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person

was entitled (ESIS Insurance-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 20 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event tha affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person

was entitled (Berkshite Hathaway-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODI SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 21 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KiEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINFEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right

and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person
was entitled (Libetty Mutual Insutance-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 22 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfuily
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the pesson

was entitled (Zenith Tnsutance-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3),

COUNT 23 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with anothet person to
canceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to. which the person
was entitled {Zurich North America Insurance-MRI), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 24 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDYR KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the oceurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person
was entitded (Insurance Company of the West-MRI), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 25 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLATM

On or about and berween June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDIS, ALEXANDLR KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right

and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person
was entitled (Zuarich North America-Shockwavce), in violation of PENAT, CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

'COUNT 26 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM -

On ot about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL. MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the oceutrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benetit and payment, and the amounnt of a benefit and payment to which the person

was entitled (Applied Risk Services--EMG/NCV), in viclation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 27 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELAWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right

and eatitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person
was entitled (Liberty Mutual Insurance--Shoclowave), in violation of PENAT. CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 28 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLATM

On ot about and between June 25, 2014 and Novembey 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and compuc with another person to
conceal and knowlngly fail to disclose the occuttence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right

and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person
was entitled (Meadowbtook Insurance--Shockwavc), in viclation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)
COUNT 29 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

-On ot about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did uhlawfully
conceal and knowingly faif to disclose the oceurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the ocenrrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the pesson

was entitled (State Compensation Insurance Fund--EMG /NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION
550(b)(3).

COUNT 30 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDIER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occmtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another petson to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an cvent that affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person
was entitled (State Compensation Insurance Fund--Shockwave), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 31 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINFEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the oceurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person

was entitled {(Sedgwick Claims--MRI), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 32 -INSURANCE - CONCEALEVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
BRNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAT MARTINFEZ, did unlawfally
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the cccusrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with anothet person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person
was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--Shockwave), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 33 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and berween Junc 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEY, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail ro disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right
and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefir and payment to which the person

was entitled (Sedgwick Claims-—-EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 34 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between june 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDIES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclosc the oceurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right

and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person
was entitled {Tristar Risk Management--Shockwavce), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){(3).

COUNT 35 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

"On oy about and between Junc 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO
ERNFESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEYZ, did unlawfully
conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to
conceal and knowingly [ail to disclose the occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right

and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the amoune of a benefir and payment to which the person
was entitled (Gallagher Bassett Services--EMG/NCV), in violation of PENAL CODYE SECTTON 550(b)(3).

COUNT 306 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS ' _
On ot about July 11, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALQO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of maoney or

otherwise, as compensation ot inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in viclation o f LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 37 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about September 15, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO LRNLSIO PARFDFS :
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, reccive and accepta
rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
money or otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violaton of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 38 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about October 29, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINE Z, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and s accept a
rebate, refund, commission, prefesence, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
moncy or otherwise, ag compensation og inducement for referring clients or patients to perform ot obrain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violaticn of LABOR CODE SIECTION 3215,

COUNT 39 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS / PATIENTS

On or about November 7, 2014, RONALD SELWYN (JRUSD GONZALO FERNESTO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER KIEV MARIINL? and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, reccive and aceepr a
rebate, refund, comumission, pmfumcc patronage, dividend, discount and other considemtion wherther in the form of
money of OthcinsL as compensation or inducement for chcnmg clicnts or patients to perform or obtain services or
benefits pursvant to the California Workess' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

| COUNT 40 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about December 3, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER KIT'V MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a
rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
money or otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform ot obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violatior of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 41 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about December 15; 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, A
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEYZ, did offer, deliver, receive 'md accept a
tebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
moncy or otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services o
benefits pursuant to the California Workess' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTTON 3215,



CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 42 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On ot about December 17, 2014, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINFEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a
rebate, refund, cominission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of
moncy ot otherwisc, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services ot
benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.

COUNT 43 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR RETFERRING
CLIENTS JPATIENTS

On or about and between January 23, 2015 aad July 16, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD and GONZALO
ERNESTO PAREDES, did offe, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation or
inducement for referring clienes ot patients to perform (compound creams) or obrain services or benefits pursvant to
the California-Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 44 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about March 4, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZATLO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise (#3327--§8,500), as compensation or inducement for refetring clients or patients to perform ot obtain
services ox benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION
3215,

COUNT 45 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERR-ING'
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about Match 4, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise (#3328--$7,400), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to petform or obtain
services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in viclation of LABOR CODE SECTION
3215,



CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 46 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On of about March 4, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALCO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIBEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, -
commmission, preference, patronage, dividend, discoun_t and other consideration whether in the form of money ot
otherwise (#3329--§8,400), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain
services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION
3215,

COUNT 47 -OFFER,DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCETPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about April 6, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a tebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and othey consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise, as compensation ot inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits
putsuant to the California Woskers' Compensation law, inviolation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 43 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about April 10, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
IIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, delivet, receive and accept a schate, refund,
comrhission, nreference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whethgr in the form of money ot
otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or paticnts to performy or obeain services or benefits
putsuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 49 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about May 27, 2015,RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBLN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, tefund,
commission, prefetence, pattonage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money ot
otherwise (#3445--$6,000 to Desert Blue Moon); as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to
perform ot obtain services ot benefits pursuant to the California Wotkers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR
CODE SECTION 3215.



CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 50 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS '

On or about May 27, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALQO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offcr, deliver, receive and aceept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise (#3447--$3,300 to Line of Sight), as compensation or inducement for referting clients or patients to

perform or obtain scrvices or benefits pussuant to the thfom ia Workers' Compensation law, in v1ohtlon of LABOR
CODESECTION 3215,

COUNT 51 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about July 16, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEY, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise (#3510--$2,500.00 to Line of Sight), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to
perform or obtain services or benefits pursnant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR
CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 52 -OFFER,DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On or about July 16, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a tebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise (#3520--$5,000.00 o Line of Sight), as compensation or inducement for referring clients ot patients to

perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR
CODE SECTION 3215

COUNT 53 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about July 16, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD, GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAT. MARTINEZ, did offes, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise {(#3518--$9,500.00 to Descre Blue Moon} as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to
performn or obrain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR
CODE SECTION 3215.
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 54 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS '

On o1 about July 16, 2015, RONALD SELWYN GRUSD,; GONZALO ERNESTO PAREDES, ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, and RUBEN MARCIAL MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a tebatce, refund,
commission, prefesence, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or
otherwise (#3519--§9,500.00 to Desert Blue Moon}, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to
peeform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in viclation of LABOR

CODE SECTTON 3215.

THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCD255519, CONSISTS OF 54 COUNTS,

"ATRUE BILL" Bonnie M, Dumanis

Diistrict Attarney, County of San Diego, State of California

Foreman of the Grand Jury ‘ Deputy District Attorney

DATE: DATIL:
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« SAN
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF 5AN DIEGO M?YM??%S
PEQPLE va Alexander Kisv Martinez, gt of Defendant | ©o% 2 =
BY M, ALLEY -
PLEA OF GLILTY/NO CONTEST ~ FELONY Court Number: SCD285519
DA Number ADY 479

I, the defendant In the above-entitisd cass, in suppert of my plea of Gullty/Mo Contest, persanally daclare as
fotlows:

1. Of those charges now flled against me in this case, | plead GUILTY fothe foiiowing

‘ offenses and admit the snhancerments, allegations and prior convictions as follows:

COUNT CHARGE ENHANCEME'\ITIALLEGATIDN
44 1,6 3218 N/A
129 P 530(0Y(3) NfA

PRIORS: (LIST ALLEGATION SECTION, COMVCTION DATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARGE) -

P

| havs not baan induced fo entar this plea by any prormise or representation of any kind, except; {St.ara i
any agraoment with the Disirict Alterney.)
Sae Altachment "A" aflachedd harate: Fodaral Plaa Agreamect in Caoge Mumber 18CR2824-BAS.

3. lam entering my plea freely and voluntarly, without fear or threat to me or anyone closely reiétac! tome.

c‘?‘

4, 1 undarstand that a plea of No Contest Is the same as a plea of Guilty for all purposes.

5. lam sober and my judgment is not impairad. | have not consumed any drig, alcohel or narcotic within :
the past 24 hours. e —

CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

Ba. |understand that | have the right to be representad by a lawyer at alf stages of the preceadings. | can hire my own
lawyar or the Court will appeint a lewyer for mae if | cannet afford one.

punderstand that as to all charges, alisgations and prior convictions fled against me, and as to any facts that
may ba usad to Increase my aentenca, now or in the futurs, | eiso have the follgwing copatitutional g rhi
1 pow glve up to anter my plea of guilty/ne contast:

8b. | have the right to a gpaady end publiie trial by lury. 1 now glve up this right.

8c. |have the right to gonfrox
give up this right.

3 witnessag against me. [ now

8. | have the right to ramaln silent (unless | choose fo testify on my cwn behalf).
| now give up this right.
. ) _ﬂ i
Be. |hava the right to present avlidance in my behalf and to have the court subpoena my ﬁ

witnesses at no cost to ma. | now give up this right. MR
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Dafendant: ' CARE NUMBER:
Wisxander Klev Madingz , SCDBESETY

7a.

7h,

7e.

7d.

Ta.

10.

1.

12,
13

CONSEQUENGCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST

| understand that | may recelve this maximum punishment as a rasult of my pleg; 8 8M0 years imprisonment or
imprisanment plus a tarm of mandatary suparvision; $30,000 fine; and —_years parole or poat-release
comimunity suparvision, with return to cusiody for avery viglation of a condltion thersof. f | am not sentenced to
imprigonment, | may be granted probation for a perfod up to 5 years or the maxdmum term af Imprisonment,
whichevar is greater. As conditions of probation [ mey be given up fo a year in jail custody, plus the fine, and any
othar conditions deemad reasonabie by the Court. | understand that if | viclate any condition of probation | can ba
sentenced to Imprisonmant for the maximum term as stated above. :

{ understand that | must pay a restitution fine ($200 - $10,000), that | will also be subject to a suspended fine In the
gams ameunt, and that | must pay full restitution to all victims.

AT , SeiTot paverwiibe 3 serlousiviplentfelany (“strike™) rasu’ g in mandatory JeHalet
probetion, subgiartially inoredsed Penalties, and 5 Y@ TH State Prisoftie-apy-fcture felony case. o

t understand thet if | am not a U.S. citizen, this plea of Guilty/No Conta&tmfsult in my removal/deportation,
exclusion from admission to the U3, and denlal of naturaiization. Additionally, if thia plea is to an “Aggravated
Falony” listed on the back of this form, than | will be departed, excluded from admission o the L3, and danied
naturalizafion. : :

lunderstand that my ples of Guilty or No Contest in this case could result in revocation of my probation, mandatory
supendsion, parola or post-ralease suparvision In othar cases, and sonsacutive sentances.

My attdmey has explained to me that other posalble consequencas of this plea may be:
{Gircla applicable consaquences.)

(1) Consacutive sariances {9  Prison prior - g. Limited local credits

2} lLoss of driving privilages (10) Mandatory imprigonmant {280/serous/prior)

q)  Commitment to Youth (11) Mandatory State Prison b. Viclent Felony {No craedit
Authority (12) Prasumptiva imprisonment o max. 15%)

{4) Lifatima registration as an (13) Prasumptive Stata Prison c. Prior Strike{s) (No credit
atson / sex offender {14} Sexually Vicient Predater to max. 20%)

(8) Reglstration &g a narcotic / Law — d. Murder or/afler 8/3/98
gang offender - (15) PossibieMandatory {No credit)

(8) Cannut possess drsarms of hormone suppression 17} Loss of public assistance

. ammunitiory traatment 18) Al sducation program

(7; Blood teat and sallva sampla {18} Reduced condustiwork 18) Other: :

{8) Pricrable {increasad craciity
punishment for future
oftansas)

{Appeal Righta) | glve up my fight to appeal the following: 1) dental of my 1538.5 motion, 2) issues related to sirks
priors (under PC sactions 867(b)}-(1) and 1170.12), and 3) any sentance stipulated hersin,

{HawayWalvor} The sentencing judige may consider my pror criminal history and the entire factual background of
the cese, including any unflied, dismissed or stricken charges or allegations or cages when granting probation,
ordaring reatitution ar imposing sentence.

(Biakely waiver) | understand that a3 to any fact In aggravation that may be used to increase my sentence on any
count or alisgation to the upper or maximum term provided by law, | have the constifutional rights listed in
paragraphs 6b-8e. | now give up those rights and agree that tha santencing judge may determine the existence or
non-axistence of any fact in aggravation, either at the initial sentencing or at any future  sentencing in the svent my
probation is revoked. oo : ,

{Cruz Walver) Negotiated Disposition pursuant to PC 1182.5: | understand that If pending sentencing | a
arrestsd for or comenit anothar crima, violate any condition of my release, or wilifully fail o appear for my probation
interview or my santencing hearing, the sentence portlon of this agreement will be cancelled. { will be sentanced
unconditlonally, and | wilt not be allowed to withdraw my guiity/no contest plea(s).

(Arbuckie Walver) | give up my right to be santenced by the judge who accepts this plea.
(Probation Report) | give up my right to a full probation report before sentencing.

SLISC CRM-012 (. /1) PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST - FELONY




Dafendant: ' : CASE NUMBER:
Alaxandar Kiev Martinez SCD555510

]
14. (Evidance Diapoaal Walver) | give up my interest in all non-blologleal proparty/avidence Impounded during the l@
investigation of this case axcept and acknowladge that if | listed any property

hers, t must also file a cialm with the impounding agency within 80 days after pronouncemant of judgment or my
abillty 1o make & claim will axpire. ,

PLEA

15, | now plead Gulity/No Contest and admlt the ¢charges, cenvictions and allegations described in paragraph #1,
above I admlt that on ?ha datas charged I {Deacnbe facts as to sach charge end. a!!egatfanj
i acred. e Jhitd) EHS ] QIR EE ACTOSITIE A 1y L

ol ]
16. !aftgg[ﬁerg ungg; gﬁgafgn%f gsgr&ji\}{]’%hat f ht?vefmad understood, il } ch tem above and any AN )
ing on the form and any atta Gurh 18 true and correct,
Dated: 4 I’Z,f t Defandant's Signature % v
Defendant's Address {408 M{“ing\,&mn AT,
£ cgﬁ,ém Sl g Q7243

St VT
Talephone Number: {4872 1’1@1 *’-%E)z‘)" 5

Defendant's Raght Thumb Print

ATTORMEY'S STATEMENT
{.the attomey for the defendant in the abova-entiled case, personally read and explainad to the defendant the eniire contents of
this plea form and any addendum thereto. | dlscussed ail charges and possible defenses with the defendant, snd the
consaquences of this plea, including any mmigration consequances. | parsonally obsarved the defendant fill in and initfal aach
ftem, or read ard Inttial each item to ackrowledie his/her understanding and walvers. | ohseryed "{ﬁ'é"aé“fandant date-and sigr this

form and any addendum, | concur in the defdndant's plea g\:;i ar of aos*sﬁm i
Dated: _@i; ﬂ‘ O\t Vm 4

natura)

(Prht Mame) , nay for Defendant '

,:rcle aner 0 [ APD T OAC f RETAINED)

INTERPRETER'S STATEMENT (¥ A abla) -

[, he sworn languaga intersrater in s procedding, ruly translated for defendant the entire -

contents of this fonm and any attached addendum. Thae defendant indlcated understanding of the contents of this form and any
addendum and than initlaled and signed the form and any addandum,

Dated:

(Print Name Court Interprater {Signature)
PROSECUTOR'S STATEMENT _
The Paople of te Stale of California, plainfiff, by it atomay, the E}mtrfct Attomey for the Coun

defandant's plea gf Guilty/No Contest a5 aet fcurth above. _
Dated: /& s C = T
Print MNama Depyty Lisict Attomey . (Sig}um)

COURT'S FINDIMG AND ORDER
The Court, having questioned tha defendant and defardant's attomeay concerning the defendant's plea of Guilty/No Contest and
admissions of the prior convictions and allegations, If any, finds that. The defendant understands and voluntarlly and Intaltigentty
walves hisfher constitutional rights; the defendant's plea and admissions are fresly and volum‘anly made; the dafendant
understands tha nature of the chergas and the conaaquencas of the plea and admlsslons and there is a factual basis for same.

3an Diego, concurs with the

- Dated:

Judge of the Superior Court
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AGGHRAVATED FELONIES

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CYTIZEN FOR AN “AGGRAVATED FELONY” AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.S.C.
1102 (a)(43), WILL RESULT IN REMOVAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLUSION, AND DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION,

“AGGRAVATED FELONIES” include, but are not limited to, the following crimes and any attempt or conspiracy to commit
such crimey, even if the conviction i3 & misdemesnor under state law: [The only exception to the apphcabdny of state
misdemeanors is whers the offense (as listed below) specifically requires a felony conviction, }

1. ANY CRIME OF VIOLENCE*

(Includes may offense that has as an element the use, attempted use, or threatcncd use of physical force against the person or
property of another, or any felony offense that, by its nature, involves a substantial risk that physical force against the person
or property of another may be nsed in the course of ccmmitﬁng the offense. (18 U.8.C. §16).)

2. BURGLARY (Except vebicle or vessel unless nzed 28 g resldenge.) *
3. CHILD PORNOQGRAPHY QFFENSES
. CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES:
2) FELONY POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE.
b) MISDEMEANOR POSSEESION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE when the defendant has proviowaly been
convicted of gav drag related offense. .
¢} POSSESSION FOR SALE OF ANY CONTROILED SUBSTANCE
d) SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
e) TRANSPORTATION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
f) MANUFACTURE/DISTRIBUTION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTAMNCE AND CULTIVATION ar
MARIJUANA

5. EELONYD.U.L (Any type)®
6. FAILURETOQ APPEAR ON A FELONY CASE
7. FORGERY™
8. FRAUD (Where logs to victlm or vietims excoeds 510,000.)
9. MONEY LAUNDERING (If nmount over $10,000.)
18. MQM&

LURYASTUBORNATION of Perjury or Bribery of a Witness™
12. PIMPING/PANDERING/OPERATING A PROSTITUTION BUSINESS
13. RAPK

4, RECEIVING STOUEN PROPERTY *
13. ROBBERY *
16, SEXUAL ABUSE OF A MINOR (Touehing is not requiced, e.g.; Indecent Exposure,)
17. m (Any type or amount)*

4 REARMS AMD EXPLOSIVES.

9, TRAFFICKING [N VEEICLES WITH ALTERED VINS*

20. DEMAND FOR QR RECEIPT OF RANSOM

* Where the term fmeposed Is at least one year, whether or not any or all of that term Is stayed or suspended at the
time of sentencing.

R PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST - FELONY T oemiae



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CT No. SCD255520
Plaintff, | DA No, ADY480

v,
INDICTMENT
AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN,

dob 02/2062;

FARHAT FATIMA KHAN,
dob 12/05/63;

ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ,
dab 12/19/77;

Defendants

PC296 DINA TEST STATUS SUMMARY

Defendant DNA Testing Requirements

KHAN, AMIR OBAIDULLAH DNA sample tequired upon conviction
KHAN, FARHAT FATIMA DNA sample required npon conviction
MARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIEV DNA sﬁmpie required upon conviction

The Grand Jury of the County of San Diego, State of California, accuses the Defendant(s) of committing, in the County of
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indlctmcnt the following crime(s): :

CHARGES

COUNT 1 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHA'T
FATIMA KXHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with anothet person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

" payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to'which the person was entitled (York Risk Services--ADL), in
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 2 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and behveénjLine 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, an event that affected a petson's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Yotk Risk Services--pain
assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(5)(3).

COUNT 3 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttence of, and knowingly assist and consphe with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Comp any of the
West--ADL), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3 )

COUNT 4 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KKHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceat and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Compary of the
West--pain assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 5§ -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Company of the
West--EIKG), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). '
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CHARGES (cont'd)
COUNT 6 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttence of, an event that affected a petson's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and.

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Company of the
West--echo), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550{b){3).

COUNT 7 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did untawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
oceurtence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued tight and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of 2 benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Insurance Company of the
West--AIM study), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTTON 550(b)(3).

COUNT 8 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER IIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceat and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person's inittal and continued tight and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (BESIS Insurance--ADL), in
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){(3).

COUNT 9 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttence of , and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
“occurtence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Hartford Insurance--ADL), in
violation of PENAL CODL SECTTON 550(b)(3). :

Page 3 of 9, Court Case No. SCD255520



CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 10 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Hartford Insurance--BIKG), in
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 11 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person o conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Hartford Insurance--echo), in
violation of PENAL CODIE SECTION 550(b)(3). ‘

COUNT 12 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CILAIM

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (State Compensation Insurance
Fund--ADL), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3}.

COUNT 13 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a petrson's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (State Compensation Insurance

Fund--pain assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 14 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (AmTtust Notth
Ametrica--ADL), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 15 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KKHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassete-—-ADL), in

violation of PENAL -CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 16 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

- On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another petson to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued tight and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett--pain
assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 17 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett--AIM study),
in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 18 -INSURANCE -~ CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA IKHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttence of, and knowingly -assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zenith Insurance--ADL), in

violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 19 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTiNG CLAIM

On ot about and between Jane 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH IKHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspite with another petson to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and cositinued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zenith Insurance--echo), in
violation of PENAL CODE SECTTION 550(b)(3). :

COUNT 20 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
cecurrence of, an event chat affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich North America '
Insurance--ADL), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

- COUNT 21 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and bet'weenjune 23,2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich North America
Insurance-pain assessment), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 22 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA ICHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
oceutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspite with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued tight and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the petson was entitled (Preferred Employer

Insurance--EKG), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){(3).

COUNT 23 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspite with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Preferred Employer
Insurance--echo), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 24 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot 2bout and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of , and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued tight and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--EXG), in
violation of PENAT CODE SECTION 550(b){3). .

COUNT 25 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrenice of , an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--echo}, in
violation of PENAL.CODE SECTION 550(b)(3),
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 26 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and hetween June 23, 2014 and November 27, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspite with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttrence of, an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insutance benefit and
payment, and the amount of 4 benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sedgwick Claims--AIM study),
in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){3).

COUNT 27 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about September 18, 2014, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN, FARHAT FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ did offes, deliver, receive and accept, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend,
discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation ot inducement for

teferring clients or patients to perform ot obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers'
Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 28 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about January 23, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH IKHAN, FARHAT FATIMA KHAN, and ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a eebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money ot otherwise, as compensation or
inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services ot benefits pursuant to the California

Wotkers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 29 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
' CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about and between September 17, 2014 and April 1, 2015, AMIR OBAIDULLAH KHAN and FARHAT
FATIMA KHAN, did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend,
discount and other consideration whethes in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation or inducement for

referring clients or patients to perform (NCVs) or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers'
Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.
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THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCID255520, CONSISTS OF 29 COUNTS,

- "A TRUE BILL" Bonnie M. Dumanis

District Attorney, County of San Dicgo, State of California

Foreman of the Grand Jury Deputy District Attorney

DATE: DATE:
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QAN SEAC SHTETIOR COURT

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORMIA, COUNTY OF 8AN DIEGO . W?ﬂ";w;v
' MAY 23201
PEOPLE vs Alexander Kiev Marﬁt1eéL. : ' Defsndarnt E R R RS X1
' gy M. ALLEY
1 S S
PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST ~ FELONY | Court Number: SCD266520
- | DA Numbar AD Y480

I, tho cdefendant In the above-entitied cass, In support of my piaa of Guilty/No Contest, personally declare as
follows:

1. Of those charges now filad against mae in thia case, | plead GUILTY to the following @
offansas and admit the enhancarments, allegations and prlor convictions as follows:
COUNT CHARGE ENHANCEMENT/ALLEGATION >
27 LG 3215 N/AS
13 _ _PC B50(bY3) N/A/

PRIORS: (LIST ALLEGATION SECTION, CONWG"FIQN DATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARGE)

2. ihavenot been induced to enter this plga by _/ any promiss or reprasentation of any kind, sxcapt: ( State |
any agraemenf wn‘ 1 the District Ah‘umey )

3. lam entering my plea frealy and voluntadly, without fear or thraat to me or anvone closely related o me..
4. understand that a plea of No Contast is the same as a plea of Guilty for all purposes.

5, lamsoberand my Judgmant Is not impaired. | have not consumed any drug, alcohol or narcofic within
the pasi 24 hours. .

CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

Ba. [undarstand that | have the right to ba representad by a lawyer at all stages of the procesdings. | can hira my own
~ lawyer or the Court will appolnt & lawyer for me if | cannot afford one.

L understand that as to all charges, allegations am‘i prior convictions filed against me, and an to any facts that
may be usaed to Increass my sentance, now or In the Radure, | also hava the fpllowing ¢onstitutional rights, whic
Lnow glve up to enter my plea of guilty/no contast:

6b. (have the right to a ypued; y. | now give up this right.

8c. {have the right to confront and cross-examl
- give up this right.

28593 against ma. | now

Bd. | have the right to pamain sliant (unless | choose lo testify on my own behalf).
1 now give up this Mght.

8¢, 1have the right tc preaget 9 a I my hahalf and to have the court subpoena my A
witnesses at no cost bo me. | now ||ve up this right.

e G072 e 001 PLEA OF GUILTY/ND CONTEST - FELONY ' R



Cefandant;
Waxander Klav Martinez

GCASE NUMBER:
BCD5E585620

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST

(R

| understand that | may recelve this maximum punishment as a result of my plea: 8Y 8Me years imprisonment or
fine; and years parole or post-eleass
gommunity supearvisiar, with retum to custody for every violation of a conditiod thereof, If | am not sentenced to
imprisonment, | may ba grantad probation for a period up to 5 years or the mecdmum term of Imprisonment,
whichaver is greater. As conditions of probation | may ba given up to a year in jail custody, plus the fine, and any
othar conditions deemad reasonable by the Court. i undsrstand that if | vmiate any condition of probation | can be

| understand that | must pay a restittion fine {$200 - $10,000), that | will alse be subject to a suspandad fine In the

{ undlarstan y conviction in will be a sarousiviglert felony (st raisuttinﬁ):.m B
probatior; substartially inc mﬁtﬁ@vvﬁ%&w@r Ry fus :

| undarstand that if | am not a U.S, citlzen, this plea of Guriiy/No Contabt ey reault in my mmoval/deporta'don,
exclusion from admission to the U.S, and denial of naturslization. Additionally, if this plea is to an *Aggravated
Falony” listad on the back of this form, then I will be depcried, atciudad from admission to tha U.S., and denled

| undarstand that my plea of Gullty or No Conteat in this case could resuft In revocation of my probation, mandatory
suparvision, parole or post-raisase supendsion in other casss, and conseculive sentencas.

7a.
imprisonment plus a term of mandatory supervision; $ 80,000
santenced to Imprisonment for the maximum tenm ag stated above.
.
same amount, and that | must pay full restitution to all vicims,
(-
7d.
naturalization.
T8,
7.

My attomay has explained to me that other possibla conaaquences of this plea may be;
(Clrcle applicable consequences.)

a. Limited local credits

(1) Consawtiva santancas
Loss of driving privileges
(3) Commitmsnt fo Youth
Authority
{4) Llifatime registration as an
arson / gex offandar
Ragistration as a rarcallc/
ng offander

&

Prigon prior

Mandatory imprisonment
{11) Mandatory State Prison
{12) Prasumptive Imprisonmant
(13) Prasumptive State Prison

(14} Sexually Violent Pradator

lLaw

(290/serous/prior)
b. Violent Felony {(No credit
" or max. 18%) _
¢. Prior Strika(s) (Mo cradit
1o max. 20%)
d. Murder on/afler 5/3/58
{Na credit

10,

1.

12,
13,

(““

(16) Possible/Mandatory

' hormene suppression
treatmant

(18) Reduced conductiwork
¢radits

(17) Lc:ss of ubllc aasistance
(18) AIDS aducation program
(18} Other:

annot possess firearms or
ammunition
+ Blood test and sallva sample
(a Priorabte (Increasad
punishmant for futlire
offenses)

{Appaal Righta) | give up my right io appaeal the fofllowing: 1) denial of my 1538.8 motion, 2) lesues related to strike
priors {under PC sactions 887(b)-(i} and 1170.12), and 3] any sentence stipulated hersin,

(Haryay Walver) The sentencing judge may considar my prior criminal history and the entirs factual background of |
the case, including any unfiled, dismissad or stricken charges or allegations or cases when granting probation,
ordering restitution or imposing santence.

{Blakely walver) | undarstand thatas to any fact In aggravation that may be used {o Increase my qantsnca on any
caunt or affegation to the upper or maximum tarm provided by law, | have the constitutional rights listed in
paragraphs 8b-8e. | now give up those rights and agree that the sentencing Judga may determine the existence or
nor-axistence of any fact In aggravation, elther at the initial sentancing oratany future sentencing In the event my
probation is revoked.

(Cruz Walvar) Negotiated D|spos:tton pursuant to PC 1182.5.  understand that if pending sentencing | am
arrestad for or comnmit another crime, violate any condition of my release, or williully fall to appear for my probation
Interviaw or my santencing hearing, the santence portion of this agreement will be cancelled. | will be sentenced

uncondltionally, and | will not be allowed o withdraw my gulltyino contest plea(s).

(Arbuckie Walver) | give up my right to be sentenced by the judgs who accepts thla plaa,
{Probation Haeport) [ give up my rigitt to a full pmbaﬂcn report befora sentancing.

BPBC CAMAIZ (Rav, 9/411)

PLEA DF GUILTY!NG COMTEST - FELDNY



Defendant: . CASE NUMBER:
Alexander Kiev Martinez 7 SCD555520

14. (Evidence Disposal Waiver) | give up my interest in all non-biologicai propattyf/evidence impounded during the [@
investigation of this case except and acknowledge that if | listed any property
hers, | must also file a claim with the impounding agency within 80 days after pronouncement of judgment or my
ability to make a claim will expire.

PLEA

18. 1 now plaad Guilty/No Contest and admit the charges, corivictions and ellegalions described in paragraph #1,
above } adrmt thal on the dates cha rged i (Dsscrrbe facrs as to each charga and allegation)
ita (s ] = ast Number 15CR2B821-BAS

2th item abova and any
is true and correct.

16. | declare under penalty of perjury that | have read, understood, Kd
attached rddaidum and averything on the form and any attacife

Dated: ___4 | iz | [& Defendant's Signature ____ £/ £ J
Defendant’s Address: _ |41 U\-Q(QahAJMr:S tﬁl t\ﬂr\}e :
ree -
Bl G (wv\-vo SIAT Q2243
State Zip

Telephone Number: { 442) quép 4RSS

Defendant's Right Thumb Print

: ATTORNEY'S STATEMENT
i, the atiomey for the defendant in the above-entitied case, personally read and explained to the defencfant the entire confents of
this plea form and any addendum thereto, | discussed all charges and possibie defenses with the defendant, and the
consequences of this plea, Including any Immigration consequences. | personally observeg_mﬁ_q_\fandan( fill in and Initial each
itern, or read and inltial each item to acknowledge nis/her understanding and wawa P | observed thedefendant date and sign this
form and any addand!‘ . I concur in the deferjgiant's plea ang wajver of ¢

; L LN AT e
! {Print Name) ti6rmayfor Dafendant (Signaiure)
relgone: PD/ APD/ OAC / RETAINED)
INTERPRETER'S STATEMENT {If Applicable)
1, tha sworn language interprater in this proceeding, truly translated for the defendant the antire
contents of this form and any attached addendurn, The defendant indicated understanding of the contents of this form and any
addendum and then initialed and signed the form and any addendum.

Dated: \ D
L l e

Dated:

{Print Name) Court interpreter "~ (Signature)
PROSECUTOR'S STATEMENT

The Peopie of the Sta!e of California, plaintiff, by its attomaey, the District Attomey for the County of #an Diego, concurs with the

dgofendant's p 7 ilty/No Conlest as set,

\ ‘ N
- Daled: ﬁb
rint Name) Deputy Digtdef Atformey {Signatur
COURT'S FINDING AND ORDER
Tha Court, having questioned the defendant and defendant’s attornsy conceming the defendant's piea of GuiltyfNo Contest

admissions of the prior convictions and allegations, if any, finds that: The defendant understands and voluntarily and intelligently
walves histher constitutional rights, the defendant's plea and admissions are freely and volunlarily made; the defendant
understands the nature of the charges and the consequences of the plea and admisstons; and there is a factual basis for same.
The Court accepts the defendant's piea and admissions, and the defendant s convicted thereby.

Dated: '

Judge of the Superior Court
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AGGRAVATED FELONIES

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CITLZEN FOR AN “AGGRAVATED FELONY” AS DEFINED UNDER 8 1).8.C.
1102 (a)(43), WILL RESULT IN REMOVAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLUSION, AND DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION,

“AGGRAVATED FELONIES” include, but are not limnited 1o, the following crimes gnd any attempt or conspiracy to commit
such crimes, even if the conviction is & misdemeanor under state law: [The only exception to the applicability of state
misdemeanary is where the offense (as listed below) specifically requires a felony conviction.}

: IME OF VIOLENCE?

(Incl‘udea any offense that has #s #n element the use, attepted use, or threatened use of physical force againgt the person or
property of another, or any felony offense that, by its nature, involves a substantial risk that physical force agninst the person
ot property of another may be used in the course of committing the offense. (18 U.8.C. §16).)

2. BURGLARY (Except vehicle or veasel uniess used as a residence.) *

3. CHILD PORNOGRAPHY OFFENSES

4, CONTROLLED SUBSTANMCES:
1) FELONY POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE.,
b) MISDEMEANOR POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE when the defendant hag prevlousiy been
convicted of any drug related effende.

¢} POSSESSION FOR SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
d) SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE '
g}  TRANSPORTATION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
H MANUFACTURE/DISTRIBUTION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE AND CULTIVATION OF
- MARIJUANA
5, FELONY D.XLIL (Any type)*
6. FAILURE TO APPEAR QN A FELONY CASE
7. FQRGERY *
8. FRAUD (Where loss o vietim or viethoy exseeds $10,060.)
9. MONEY LAUNDERING (1f amount over $10,000.)
10, MURDER

11. PERJURY/SUBQRNATION of Perfury or Bribery of a Witmeas®
12. PIMPING/PANDERING/OPERATING A PROSTITUTION BUSIMNESS

13 RAPE
14, RECEIVING STOLEN PROPERTY *
18 RORBERY *

16. SEXUAL A}&USE OF A MINOR (Touching {s not required, e.g.: Indecent Exposure.)
17. mmj (Any type or amuunt}* '

¥ Wherc the term impcsed Is at least OTie Ye4r, whnsther or not any or all of thnt term is stayed or suspended at the
time of sentencing.
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CT No. 5CD255521
Plﬂ]nti{"f) DA No. ADY481

INDICTMEN'T
EMMANUEL ED GO,
dob 07/ 11763,

CHRISTOPHER EMMANUEL GO,
dob 07/20/87;

ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ,

dob 12/19/77;
Defendants |
PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY
Defendant DNA Testing Requirements
GO, EMMANUEL ED DNA sample required upon conviction
GO, CHRISTOPHER EMMANUEL DNA sample required upon conviction .
MARTINEZ, ALEXANDIIR KIEV . DNA sample required upon conviction

The Grand Jury of the County of San Diego, State of California, accuses the Défendant(s) of committing, in the County of
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indictment, the following crime(s):

CHARGES

COUNT 1 -OFFER,DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS _ _ '
On or about and berween September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, TMMANUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER
EMMANUEL GO did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation ot

inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services (DNA) or henefits putsuant to the California
Wotkers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTTON 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 2 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about and between September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, EMMANUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER
EMMANUEL GO did otfer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other COIlbldelatIDIl whethert in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation or
inducement for veferring clients or patients to perform or obtain services (prescription medications) or benefits
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.

COUNT 3 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
' CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about and between September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, EMMANUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER
EMMANUEL GO did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money ot otherwise, as compensation or
inducement for referting clients or patients to perform or obtin services (EMGs) or benefits pursuant to the
California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 4 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about and between September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, EMMANUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER
EMMANUEL GO did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money o1 otherwise, as compensation ot
inducement for refesring clients or patients to perform ot obrain services (NCVs) or benefits pursuane to the
California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODF SECTION 3215,

COUNT 5 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

* On ot about and between September 12, 2014 and April 27, 2015, EMMANUEL ED GO and CHRISTOPHER
EMMANUERL GO did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation or
inducement for referring clients or paticnts to perform or obtain services {compound creams) or benefits pursuant to

the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTTON 3215.

COUNT 6 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS ‘
On or about and hetween September 12, 2014 and Apyil 27, 2015, EMMANUEL EID GO and CHRISTOPHER
EMMANUEL GO did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation or

inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services (MRIs) or benefits pursuant to the California
Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODIE SECTION 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 7 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about March 18, 2015, EMMANUEL ED GO, CHRISTOPHER EMMANUEL GO and ALEXANDER

KIEV MARTINEZ did offey, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,

dividend, discount and othet consideration whether in the form of money (#1322 for $8,000.00 to Line of Sight) or

otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring clients oy patients to perform or obtain services or benefits
* pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in viclation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 8 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about Match 20, 2015, EMMANUEL ED GO, CHRISTOPHER EMMANUEL GO and ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money ($8,000 cash) or otherwise, as compensation
or inducement for referring clicnts or patients to perform or obrain services or benefits pursuant to the California

\Wor}(ers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCD255521, CONSISTS OF 8 COUNTS.

"ATRUE BILL" Bonnie M, Dumanis

Districe Attorney, County of Sun Diego, Sate of California

Foreman of the Grand Jury Deputy District Attorney

DATE: DATE:



FILED

SAN DIECT W IPERIOR COURT

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORMIA, COUNTY OF S8AM DIEGO y AY""fz""""‘ ‘;‘5{3‘5'
PEOPLE va Alexander Kiev Martlnez, Dafandant | TuEse G THE SRR COURT
1y M. ALLEY
PLEA OF GUILTY/NG CONTEST - FELONY Court Number: SCD288521
DA Number ADYA481
|, the defundant In the above-entitled cass, In support of my plea of Bullty/No Contast, personally daclare as
follows
1. Of those charges now filed against me in this casa, | plead BUILTY .. to the following - f‘-’
offanses and admit the enhancemeénts, allegations and prior convictions as follows: (

COUNT CHARGE EMHANCEM#;N"?/ALLEGATIOl\?“"’

7 LC3218 M/A

PRIORS: (LIST ALLEGATION SECTION, COMVICTION bATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARGE)

I

any agreement with the District Attornay )

I have not been Induced to anter this plea by any promisa or rapresentation of any kind, except: (State

Sea Atachment "A* ; Fadsral Plaa Agreement in Case Mumber 15CR2821-BAS

3. lam sntering my plea freely and voluntarly, without fear or thrsat tc me or anyons closely related to me. l
4, tunderstand that a plea of No Contast is the sarme as a plea of Guilty for ali purposes. ‘

5. lam sober and my judgment is not impaired. | havea not consumad any dmg alcahol or narcotic within

the past 24 hours.
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

a.
awyer or the Court will appoint a Jawysr for ma if | cannot afford one.

{ undarstand that | have tha right to ba mpragentad by a lawyer at all stages of the proceadings. | can hire my own

-1 upderstand that as to all charges, allegations and prior canwie:timﬁs e against ma, and as to nny facm that

may be usad to Incraase my santancs, now or in the futurs, | slso have the f¢
Lnow gilve Up to smter my plea of gulityino contest:

Bb. 1have the right to a guesdy and p

| have the right to gopitont and ¢ross
give up this right.

ad.
t now give up this right.
8. | have tha right to present svidencs In my gaha!f and to have the court subpoena my

witnasses at no cost to me. | now glve up thls right.

ry. | now glve up this right.

§5:23 against me. | now

| have the right to remain slfert (unless | choose to 'tesﬁfy on my own behalf).

300G CRM-U7Z (Rew, §/11)

PLEA OF GUILTY/NO COMTEST - FELONY



[Dﬂfendrant: CASE NUMBER:
Hayander Kiew Martingz , ' SCD255821

7a.

75,

7c.

7d.

7e,

10.

11.

12,
13.

COMBEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST

| understand that | may recelve this maximum punizhinent as a result of my pleg: 3 years imprisonment or
imprisonmant plug a ferm of mandatory suparvision; § 10,000 fing; and & years parole or post-rotease
gcommunity supervision, with return to custody for avery violation: of a cendition theraof, If | am not sentenced to
imprisonment, | may bs grantad probation for g period up to 5 years or the maximum term of Imprisonmient,
whichever is greater. As conditions of probation | may be given up to a year in jail custody, plus the fine, and any
other conditions deemed reasonabla by the Court. 1 understand that if | violate any condition of probation ] can be
santenced to impriscrnmant for the maxdmum famm as stated above,

{ understand that | must pay a restitution fine (3200 - $10,060), that | will also be subject to a suspended fine in the
sarma amount, and that { must pay full restitution to all victims. :

s

| ung that my convigtier'n fiz-gase will be felant felony (“sirike™. suﬁing in mandat ial of
propétion, subsatant creased pen Id a term In State Privor 1WW
{ understand that If { am not a U.S, citizen, this pisa of Guilty/Mo Contegtsaay result In my removal/deportation,
axclusion from adrmlssion to the U.8. and denlal of natureitzation. Additionally, if this plea is to an “Aggravated
Falony” listed on the back of this form, then | will be deported, sxcluded from admission to the U.5., and deniad
naturalization.

I understand that my plea of Gulity or No Contast In this case ceuld resuitin revocation of my probation, mandatory |

supervision, paroia or post-release gupervision in other casas, and consecutive sentences,

My attomey has explained to ma that other possibie consaquences of this plea may be;
{Circle applicable consequences.)

(1) Conssecutive santances (8) Prison prior 8. Limited local credits
{2} Loss of driving privileges {10} Mandatory Imprisonmant (290/sarioug/prior)
(3) Commitment to'Youth §1 1) Mandatory State Prison b. Viclent Felorty (Mo aradit
Authority ' 12} Presurnptive imprisonment or max. 15%)
(4) Lifeffrme reglsiration ag an {13) Presumptive State Prison ¢. Pror Stike(s) (No credit
. arson f sex offerder {(14) Sexuslly Victant Predator to max, 20%)
(8) Raegisiration a4 a narcotic / Law d. Murdsr orvafter 8/3/08
gang offendar (18) Possible/Mandatory {No credit) :
(6) Cannot possess firearma or hormong suppression (17} Loas of public asslistanca
ammuniton traatmant 513; AIDS sducation program
{17 Blood test and saliva sample  (18) Reduced conductiwork 18} COther:
(8} Priorable {Increased credits
punishment for future
offensas)

{Appaal Righta) | give up fny right to appeal the fullowing: 1) denial of my 1538.5 metion, 2} issues refated o strike
prioes (Under PC sections 887(b)-(i) and 1170.12), and 3) any sentence stipulated hersin,

{Harvay Walver) Tha sentencing judge may consider my prior criminal histery and the énﬁra factual background of |

the case, Including any unfifed, dismissed or sticken charges or allegations or cases when granting probation,
ordering reatitution ar imposlng sentance. :

(Blakaiywalver) { understand that as to any fact In aggravation that may be used to increase my sentence on any
count or allegation to the upper or maximum term providad by law, | have the constitutional fghts Fsted In
paragraphs 6b-86. | now give up thoss rights and agree that the santencing judge may determine the existence or
non-axistonce of any fact In aggravation, efiber at the Inftial sentancing or at any future sentencing in the event my
probation 1s revolted.

(Cruz Walvar) Nagotiated Disposition pursuant to PC 1192.5: | understand that if pandlng gentencing { am -
arrested for or cammit another crime, violate any condition of my release, or willfully fail to appear for my probation |

interviaw or miy saritencing hearing, the santence portion of this agreemant will bs cancelled. | will be santenced
unconditionailly, and | will not be allowed to withdraw my guilty/no contest plea(s).

(Arbuckds Walvar) | give up my right to be sentenced by the judge who accepts this plea,
{Probation Report) | give up my rght to & full probation report before sentencing.

- BDAC CRM-D1Z (Rév. B/11) _ PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST - FELONY




[Defondant: CASE NUMBER:
lexander Kov Martnaz SO0O2E6821

14, (Evidence Dlaposal Walver) | give up my interest in all non-binlogleal property/avidenca impoundad during the @@
investigation of this case axcapt snd acknowledga that if | listed any proparty _
hers, ! must also fila a clalm with the Impounding agency within 80 days after pmnouncament of Judgment or my
abllity to make a ¢lairn will expire.

PLEA

15, 1 now plead Guilty/Ne Contest and admit tha charges, convictions and allegations dascribed in paragraph #1, q
abova ] admlt that on the datas chargad L (Dageoribe focls as ko vsach charge and alfsgation) A-ﬂ
L factuat bagls sas Aitacho Fadarat Plea Agreemantin Caga Numbar 15CR2821-845 v

16. | daclare under penaity of patjury that | have read, understo ' ch ltem above and any
atlached addendum, and everything on the form and any a Is tnis and comect,
Dated: | (2 “a Defendant's Signature —r_
Pefandant's Address: __ 14714 M-m&m Ao Hort
- Bireal
El_Onsn 0 82243

' - Cit State Zip
Tolephone Number: {42 2365~ Ei’:'}‘"ﬁ""i» '

Defendant's Right Thumb Prini
ATTORMEY'S STATEMENT
I, the attomay for the defendant in the above-enttiad case, personally read and auplained fo the defendant the enfire contents of
thiz plea form and any addendum therate. | discussed all charges and pogsibla defensas with the defandant, and the
consequences of this plea, including any immigration consequances. | par:mnaily obsarved tha defandant Bl In and initial sach
itern, or read and initial aach itern to acknowledge histher understanding ard wawsm i obsewed,ﬂxeﬂﬂim’fdam date and slgn this
form and any. addendum. | congur In the defprgdant's plea and walver of con

Dated: “j-(‘\?" 1 P \bﬂ—‘ . '
m;amfay for Befandait (Signatire)

(Biint Nama)
/ (Cirf‘te ong:” PO/ APD / OAC RETAINED}
IMTERPRETER'S STATEMEMTY Applleibio)
|, the sworn language Interprater In this procseding, truly ranslated for the defendant the entire
comtents of this form and any attached addendum. The dafendant indicated understanding of the contents of this form and any
addendum and then inltialed and signed tha farm and any addsndum.

Dated:

(Print Mame) Court Interprater (Signatura)

PROSECUTOR'S STATEMENT '

Tha Paople of the State of Californias, plaintiff, by its aitornay, the District At‘tomay for the County of SagFlllego, concurs with the
defendant's ple, /tylblc Contast ag sat forth above. '

Dated: i 7V C 4

Nt Mame ¥ De uty Dtsﬁ-jgmﬁo & (Slgnatursj
COURT'S FIMDING AND ORDER

The Court, having questioned the defendant and defendants attomey concerning the defendant's plas of Gulity/No Contest and

admissions of the prior convictions and ailegations, if any, finds thet: Thae deferdant understands and voluntarily and inteliigentty

walves histher consttutional rghts; the defendant's plea and admissions are fresly and voluntarlly made; the defendant

undarstands the natura of the charges and tha consequences of the plea and admissions; and there is a factual basls for same,

The Court accapts the defendant's plea and admjasions, and the defendant is convicted thereby.

c EVHERABIDE
BLSC CRIO12 (Rav. 314) PLEA DF GUILTYMNO CONTEST - FELONY Paga 3ol 4

Datad.

Judge of the Superior Court




AGGRAVATID FELONIES

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CITIZEN FOR AN “AGGRAVATED FELONY” AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.S.C.
1101(2)(43), WILL RESULT IN REMOVAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLUSION, AND DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION.

“AGGRAVATED FELONIES® include, but are not limited to, the following crimes and any attempt or conspiracy to commit
anch erimes, even if the convietion is a misdemeanor under state law: [The only exception to the applicability of state
misdemeanors i3 where the offense (as lsted below) specifically requires a felony conviction.)

(Includcsany o&‘cnseﬂmthas as an slement the use, attcmptcd use, or threatened use of physical force against the person or
property of another, or gy felony offsnse that, by its nature, mvolves 2 substantial risk that physical force against the person
or property of another may be used in the course of committing the offense. (18 U.8,C. §16).)

1. BURGLARY (Kxeept veblele or vessel unless nsed as 2 residence) #
3. CHILD PORNOGRAPHY OFFENSHY

4. CONTROLLED SUBSTAMCES:

8} FELONY POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE.

b} MISDEMEANOR POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUTBSTANCE when the defendant has previously been
convicted of any drug related offense.

¢) POSSEREION FOR SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

d) SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

ey TRANSPORTATION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

B MANUFACTURE/DISTRIBUTION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE AND CULTIVATION OF

MARLITUANA '

8 FELONY D.UL (Any type)¥

6. FATLURE TO APPEAR ON AFELONY CASE

7. FORGERY*

8. EM (‘Whem foes to viedm or viedims exeeeds $10,000.)
MDERING (f amonnt over $10,080.)

10, MQE

11, PERJURY/SURORMATION of Perjury or Bribery of a Wimess*

12, PIMPING/PANDERINCG/ORPEBATING A P B8]

13. RAFE

14, RECEIVING STOLEN PROPERTY *

15, ROBBERY *

15, SEXUAYL ABUSE OF A MINOR (Tenching s not required, ¢.g.: Indecent }prusure )
17. THEFT (Any type or amoun)®

18. TRAFFICKING IN FIREARMS AND EXPLOSIVES.

19, TRAFFICKING IN VEHICLES WITH ALTERED VINS*

20. DEMAND FOR GR RECEIPFT OF RANSOM
* Where the term mposed iy at least one yeay, whather ox not any or all of that term Is stayed or suspended at the
time of sentencing,

SOHG GRML12 [Fow, 9111} PLEA OF GUILTYINO COMTEST - FELONY _ Puge 4 o7 4



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CT No. SCD255522
Plaintiff, | DA No. ADY533

V.
: _ INDICTMENT
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ,
dobs 12719/ 77,

ERIC JAY SCHAMES,
dob 09/07/83;

JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE,

dob 08/03/80;
Defendants
PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY
Defendant DNA Testing Requirements
MARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIEV : DINA sample required upon conviction
SCHAMES, HERIC JAY ' DNA sample required upon conviction
WHITE, JENNIFER LOUISE DNA sample required upon conviction

The Grand Jury of the County of San Diego, State of California, accuses the Defendant(s) of committing, in the County of
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indictment, the following erime(s):

CHARGES

COUNT 1 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
' _ CLIENTS/PATIENTS ,
On or about and between October 1, 2014 and November 1, 2014, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, BERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITT did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission,
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as
compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the

California Workers' Compensation law, T'O WIT $20,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTTON 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 2 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS /PATIENTS
On ot about and between November 1, 2014 and December 1, 2014, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, BRIC ]AY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE did offer, dcllVCI receive and accepta rebate, refund, commission,
preference, patronage, dividend, disconnt and other consiclcration whether in the form of money ot otherwise, as
compensation ot inducement for referring clients or patients to perform ot obtain services or benefits pursuant to the

California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $10,000, in viclation of LABOR CODE SECTTON 3215,

COUNT . 3 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSA’I‘ION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about and between December 1, 2014 and December ’15 2014, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC
JAY SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISL WHITE did offer, delivee, receive and accept a rebate, refund,
commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form ofmoncy ot
otherwise, as compensation or inducement for refesring clients or patients to perform ot obtain services or benefits
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $14,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION
3215,

COUNT 4 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On ot about and between January 1, 2015 and January 30, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUIQ] WHITE did offer, df:lJVCL receive and accept a tebate, refund, commission,
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or othcnvmc, as

compensation or inducement for referring clients ot patients to perform or obtain services ot benefits pursuant to the
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $20,100, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.

COUNT 5 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On ot about and between February 1, 2015 and February 10, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LLOUISE WHITE did offet, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission,
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or othenwise, as

compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $20,000, in viclation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215;

COUNT 0 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On ot about and between Febyruary 1, 2015 and February 2, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, BRIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission,
pteference, patronage, dividend, diseount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as

compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or bencfits pursvant to the
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $27,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTTON 3215,



'CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT. 7 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about and between Match 1, 2015 and March 30, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission,
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of moncey or otherwisce, as
compensation ot inducement for referting clients or patients to perform or cbrain services or benefits pursuant to the

Califotnia Wortkers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $18,000 in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.

COUNT 8 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS ' '
On of about and between Aptii 1, 2015 and April 30, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFIIR LOUISE WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission,
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration wherher in the form of money cr otherwise, as
compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or ebtain services or benefits pursnant to the

California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $17,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 9 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PA ITENTS

On or about and between April 1, 2015 and April 30, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER .LOUIS], WHITE did offer, deliver, receive and aceept a rebate, refund, commission,
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as
compensation ot inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obrain services or benefits pursuant to the

California Wotkers' Compensation law, TO WTT $10,000, in viclation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 10 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT CO‘\/IPFNSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about and between April 1, 2015 and April 30, 2015, ALEXANDER KTV MARTINEZ, ERIC jAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER I OUISL WHITY did offer, deliver, receive and aceept a rebate, refund, commission,
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration wherher in the form of money or otherwise, as
compensation or inducement for referring clients or patients to perforny or obtain services or benefits pursnant to the
California Wotkers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $20,000, in viclation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 11 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS
On or about May 1, 201 5, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, BRIC JAY SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE
WHITLE did offer, deliver, receive and accept a vebate, refu nd, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount
and other consideration whethcer in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation or inducement for referring

clients ot paticnts to perform or obtain services or benefits pursnant to the California Workers' Compensation law,
TO WIT, $7,000, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,



CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 12 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPLNSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about and between June 1, 2015 and june 30, 2015, ALEXANDUR KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUIS]* WHITE did offer, dclzvcl receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission,
preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other conqidcmﬁon whether in the form of moncey or otherwise, as

compensation ot inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the
California Workers' Compensation law, TO WIT, $15,000, in. violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.

COUNT 13 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlaw(ully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to.conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the oceurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlernent to an insurance benefit and payment, and

the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitied (ANS - The Hartford), in violation ofPENAL
CODE SECTION 550(b){3).

COUNT 14 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assistand conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a pegson's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and

the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - The Hartford), in violation of
PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){3}.

COUNT 15 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDIR KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurtence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitded (ANS - ACE/ESIS), in violation of PENAL
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).



CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 16 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurtence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - Magna Carta), in violation of PENAL
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 17 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the oceurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another pesson to conceal and knowingly fail to disclosc the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the pesson was entitled (Sleep Study - Magna Carta), in violation of
PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b}(3).

COUNT 18 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the eccurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued sight and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - SCIF), in viclation of PENAL CODE
SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 19 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did untawfully concea! and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefic and payment, and
the amount of a bencfit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - Berkshire Hathaway) in violation
of PENAL CODIE SECTION 550(b)(3).



CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 20 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did ualawlully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entiddement to an insarance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - AmT'vust) in violation of PENAL
CODE SECTION 550(b){3}.

COUNT 21 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 1, 2014 and Septembes 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclase the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - Liberty Mutual) in violation of PENAL
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 22 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, FRIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclosc the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an cvent that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and

the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled {ANS - Sedgwick) in violation of PENAL
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 23 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and Seprember 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and [JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the oceurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - Liberty Mutual) in violation of PENAL
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).



CHARGES (cont'd)
COUNT 24 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMIS, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfolly conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's inital and continued right and entitiement to an insurance benefit and payment, and

the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - Liberty Mutual) in violation of-
PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). ‘ '

COUNT 25 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail ro disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefir and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - ICW), in viclation of PENAL CODI:
SECTION 550(b)(3). '

COUNT 26 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC]AY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly {ail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurtence of,
an event that affecred a pexson's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was eatitled (Steep Study - ICW), in violation of PENAL
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). '

COUNT 27 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMIS, and JENNTFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspite with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclosc the occurrence of,
an event that affected & person's initial and continued right and entitlement te an insurance benefir and payment, and

the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - SCIF), in violation of PENAL
CODZE SECTION 550(b)(3),



CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 28 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occutrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrenice of,
an event that affected a person’s inital and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and

the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - Broadspire), in violation of PENAL
CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 29 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFEECTING CLAIM

On or about and between ScptcmbcL 1, 2014 and Seprember 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC jAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISL WHITE, did unlqwful]y conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspm, with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's inital and continued right and entitlenent to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (‘%lccp Study - Broadspirce) in violation of

PENAL CODF SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 30 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On cr about and between Seprember 1, 2014 and Seprernber 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affecred a person's initial and contdnued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of 4 benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - AmTrust) in violation of PENAL
CODE SECTICN 550(b)(3). '

COUNT 31 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, FRIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the oceurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sleep Study - AmTrust) in violation of

PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)
COUNT 32 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, ERIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHITE, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initdal and continued right and entidement to an insurance benefit and payment, and
the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ANS - Gallagher-Bassett) in violation of

PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 33 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015, ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, BRIC JAY
SCHAMES, and JENNIFER LOUISE WHIT, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence
of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of,
an event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and

the amount of a benefit and payment to which the persen was entitled (Sleep Study - Gallagher Bassett) in violation of
PENAL CODE SECTION 550{b)(3}.

THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCI>255522, CONSIST S OF 33 COUNTS,

"ATRUE BILL" Bonnie M, Dumanis

Distsict Attoroey, County of San Diego, Staté of California

Foteman of the Grand Jury _ Deputy District Attorney

DATE: : DATT:
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_ FILED

SAN D ~~%15R COURT

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUMTY OF 8AN DIEGO

MAY é“”s%*’ﬁ“’"”

PEOPLE va Alexander Klev Marfinez DefendardqLERIN o =5 bz ol DUURT
, T BY M. ALLEY
a8 Court Number: SCD256622
PLEA OF GUILTY/NG CONTEST - FELONY
DA Numbar: ADY 535

I, the defendant In tha above-entitlad casa, In support of my plea of Gulity/No Contast, personally declars as

follows:

1. Of those charges now filed aga:rmt ma in this cass, 1 plead

GUILTY to tha foliowing @

offenses and admil the enhancements, allegations and pror convictions as follows:

COUNT : - CHARGE ENHANCEMEMNT/ALL EGATION
LC 3215
13 ' PC S30(BY3)

PRIORS: (LIST ALLEGATION SECTION, COMNVICTION DATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARGE)

R

any agreament with the Disirict Attorney.)

Sas Atachmant "A": Fadaral Plea Agtaamantin case numbar 1SCR2871:0AS.

3. lamentering my plea frealy and voluntarly, without fear or threat to me or anyone closely related to me.

4, | understand that a pleg of No Contest is the same as a plaa of Guilty for ail purposes.

5. | am soberand my judgrnent Is not impairad. | have not consumaed any drug, alcohol or narcotlc within

the past 24 hours,

| CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

Ba. | undabsmnd that { have the right to be representad by a lawyer at all stages of tha procesdings. | can hire my own

lawyer or the Court will appoint a lawysr for me if | cannot afford one.

[ have not been inducad to enter this ';::!sa by any promise or representation of any kind, except: (State | y;

[ understand that ae to all charges, al%ag&tlons and prior convictions flled against me, snd 28 to any facts that
roay be used to incresse my sentencs, now or in the futurs, | also have the following constitutional rights, which -

Lnow alve up to sntar my plea of guiltyino contest:

8b. [ have the right to & gpesdy and publie trial by lury. | now glve up this right.

o wilngasas against ma. | now

gc. | have the right to gonfront and croes-gxs
give up this Hght.

84. | have the right to ramaln stlent (unless | choose to tasu‘fy' on my own behalf).

| now give up this right.

8e. |have the right to prasent avi 2 Inmy heha!t and to have the court subpoena my

witnessas at no.cost 1o me. 1 now glva up thin right.

BDIC CRM-G1Z (Rov. 8117} ' PLEA OF GLILTYMNG CONTEST - FELONY
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Dafandant: CABE NUMBER:
axander Kiev Mariines SOD25E622

7a.

=~}
o

78,

1,

10.

i1,

12,
13.

-game amount, and that | must pey full restitution to all victims.

CONSEQUEMCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY DR NO CONTEST

f understand that | may recalve this maxdmum punishmerit as a result of my ple:ac~ Sy Bmo years Imprisonment or @
Imprisonmant plus a tarm of mandatory supervision; §60,000 fine; and é yaars parole or postrelease |
communify supensision, with return {o custody for svery violation of a condition thereof. If | am not sentencad to
fmprisonment, | may ba granted probation for & perled up to § years or the maximum term of imprscamant,
whichever is graater. As conditions of probation ! may be given up to a year In jall custody, plus the fine, and any
ather conditions deamexd reasonable by tha Couwrt. | understand thatif | violate any condition of probation | san be
sentenced to Imprisanmant for the maximum ferm as slated above.

{ understand that [ must pay a restitution fine (3200 - §10,000), that 1 will also ba subject to a suspendad fine In the

lund ol that my co :%:gm in this casa will baseora g imwmi of :
prok@tion, wybstantially-infreasid.panaltise;Wnd a term irétar - T e _

undarstand that if | am not & ULE, cltizen, this plea of GuiltyNao Contest mey rasutt in my removal/deportation,
exclusion from admission to the U.8. and denial of naturalization. Additionally, If this plea is to an “"Aggravated
Faiony” listad on the back of this form, then | will be deported, excludad from admission to the U.S,, and denied
neturaitzation. ' '

funderstand that my plea of Guilty or Mo Cortsst In this case could result in revocation of my probation, mandatory
supandsion, parole or post-release supervision in vther cases, and consecutive sentencas.

My attarnay has éxpfaﬁn&d to me that other possible consaguences of this plea may be:
{Clrcle applicabla consaquances.)

(1) Consecufive sentences (8) Prson prior a. Limited local crodits

(2) Loas of driving privilegas {10} Mandatory Imprigscnrnant {260/serous/prior)

(3)  Commitment to Youth {11} Mandatory State Prison b. Viclant Falony (No credit
Authonity {12} Presumpdve Imprisonment or max. 15%)

{4) Lifatime ragistration g an (13} Presumptive State Prison ¢, Prior 8frike(s) (No credit
argon / sax offender (14) Sexualy Viotant Pradator o max. 20%

(6) Ragistration a8 a narcotic / Law ' “d. Murdar on/after §/3/98
gang offender {15) PossiblaMandaiory - {No credit)

{8) Cannot posseass firaarms of hermons supprassion (17} Loss of public aszistance
ammunition tresatment 21 8; AlDS aducation program

7) Biood test and safiva semple  (18) Reducad conductiwork 19) Othar:

EB) Priorabla (incregsad cradits
punishment for future
offenises)

(Appanl Rights) [ give up my right to appaal the following: 1) denlal of my 1838.5 motion, 2) issues relatad to stike [ ’@‘i
priors (undar PG sections B87ib)-(1) and 1170.12), and 3) any santence stipulated harein, '

(Hmy!ﬁalwr? The sentancing judge may consicer my prior eriminal history and the entire fachial background of
the casa, Including any unflfed, dismissed or stricken charges or allegations or cases whan grarting probatian,
ordaring restitution or imposing sentence. .)

{Biakely wahver) | undarstard that ag to any fact in aggravation thet may be used to increass my sentence on any
count or allegation to the upper or maximum term provided by law, | have the constitutional rights listed in
paragraphs 8b-8a. | now give up thosa rights and agreo that the sentencing Judge may detarmine the existence or
nen-axistence of any fact in aggravetion, sither at the initial sentencing or at any future santencing in the avent my
probation Is revaked.

(Cruz Walver) Negotated Disposition pursuant to PC 1192.5: | undemtand that if pending sentencing 1 am
arrested for or commit another crima, violata any condttion of my release, orwillfully fall to appear for my probation
intarview or my sartencing hearing, the santence portion of this agresmant will ba cancellad. | will be sentenced
unconditionally, and [ will not be allowed to withdraw my gullty/no coritest plea(s).

(Arhuckle Walver} | give up my right to be sentenced by the judga who accepts this plea.
(Probation Report) | give up my right to a full probation report before sentencing.

e
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Dafondant: ) ) CASE NUMBER:
Alaxander Kiav Martinaz SCDI56822

14, (Evidence Disposal Waivar} | give up my interast In all non-biciegica! propertyfevidence impounded during the
Investigation of this case except and acknowledge that If | listed any proparty
hera, | must also file a claim with tha Impounding agency within 80 days after pronguncement of judgment or my
ability o malke a claim will axpira,

PLEA

15 | now plead Guilty/No Conteat and admit the charges, convictions and allegations described in paragraph #1, /? )
R

abov& | admlt that on the date& charqed I: {Doesoribe facta ag fo eaf.h c[‘rarga and alfagaffon)

16, ldaclare under panalty of pariury thiat | have rmxd understood "
attached sddendum, and avafythmg on the form and any attagii

pated: __ & 112} |6 Defendants Signaturs
Mefendant's Addrass: i“‘\"’l*"\ M*E'][/l& :u,m.o mé'
Street
= CMJM; Cilk GTH3
. Stade Zlp
Telaphons Number; { £347) 'l'.‘nfn. - Li%ﬁ;‘;

arn above and any f
rue and comrect. &fdf

Diefandant's Right Thumb Print

ATTORNEY'S 8TATEMENT
i, the attomey for the dafendant in the abeve-entitled caze, parsonaily read and explained to the defendant the antire contents of
this plaa form and any addendum thersto. | dwfwww' alf charges and possible defenses with defandant, and the

CONSRUUSNCAs of this plas, including any Immigratt LOhﬁiEQUi’F‘G&S 1 pc»rrsonai!y obwwed thade:f‘;fra fill in and Initel mach
ftam, or read and initiel sach itern to acknowledga higFer understanding and walvars. é‘p :?cﬂh" & defendant date and mgn thia

form and any rddepdrm. I concur In the defengant’s plss and w:;;?of constitution
Dated: > PR O S £ ﬁ\ —
A {Prigt Name) | ~apbrmay forBatendart (§"Qﬂfamra)
‘ _ ircle or PD! APD [ DACY RETAIMED) |
INTERPREZTER'S STATEMENT {1 u&bl&)

i, the sworm __language Interprater in this proceeding, truly translated for the defandant the entire
- contents of this form Bnd any attached addendum. The detendant indicated understanding of the contants of this form and any
addandum and {hen Inftialed and sigrad the ke and any addandurm,

Dated: #‘l“fgr "}W ,—?‘%" .

i ' (Print Marrie) Court Interpretar (Signature)
' PROZJECUTOR'S STATEMENT

The Penple of the State of Callfornia, plaintiff, by s attorney, the District Attoimey foE the County of San Diago, concurs with the

defandant's plea of Guilty/No Contest as set forth above. |
AR Tl R

' {Print Mami _!Z \ Deputy District Aftomaey {Signatura)

COURT'S FINDING AND ORDER :

The Court, having questionad the dafandant and dafendant’s attomey concaming the defandant's plaa of Guilty/No Contest and
admissions of the prior convictions and allegations, if any, finds that: The defendant understands and voluntarily and intelligently
waivas hisher constitutional rights; the defendant's ples and admissions ame frealy and w{untar!!y mada; the defendant
understands the nature of the charges and the consaguences of the ples and admissions; and thars is a factual basls for same.

The Court accepts the defandant's plea and admissionar-and the defandantisco nwcted theraby.

Datach

Judge of the Superior Court
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AGGRAVATED FELONIES

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CITIZEN FOR AN “AGGRAVATED FELONY” AS DEFINED UNDER 8 U.S.C.
1101.()(43), WILL RESULT IN REMOVAL/MDEPORTATION, EXCLUSON, AND DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION,

“AGGRAVATED FELGNIES” inchude, but are not limited to, the following crites gnd any atterapt or conspiracy to comumnit
such erimes, even if the conviction is & misdemeancr under state law: [The only exception to the applicability of state
misdemennors is where the offense (as listed below) specifically requires a felony conviction. ]
1. ANY CRIMY OF VIOLENCE*
(Includes any offense that hag as an element the use, attempted use, or threatened use of { physical force against the person or
propexty of another, or any felony offense that, by its nature, involves a substantial risgk that physical force against the person
or property of another may be used in the course of committing the offense. (18 U.S.C. §16).)

2. BURGLARY (Except vehicle or vessel unless used as n realdence.) *

3. CHOLD PORNQGRAPHY OFFENSES

-H-"—_—"'-,
CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES:

1) FELONWY POSSESSION.OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE.

b) MISDEMEANOR POSSESSIL.TOF ANY COWTROMD SUBSTANCE when the defendant has previously been
convieted of gny drug related offense.

¢} POSSESSION FOR SALE OF ANY CONTROLTRD SUBSTANCE

d) SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

¢) TRANSPORTATION OF ANY CONTROLLED S8UBSTANLT : -

f  MANUFACTUREMISTRIBUTION OF ANY CONTROLLEL ._2_..ANCE AMD CULTIVATION OF
MARIJUANA

5. FELONY D.U.L (Any type)*

6. FAILURE TO APPEAR ON A FELONY CASE
7. FQRGERY™
8
9

b

- FRAUD (Where loss to vietim or viethms exceeds 510,000.)
MOMNEY LAUNDERING (If amonnt over 51{),0(50.)
10. MURDER
11, PERJURY/SURORNATION of Perfury or Bribery of a Witness™
12, PIMPING/PANDERTNG/OPERATING A PROSTITUTION BUSINESS

13. RAXE
4. RECEIVING STOLEN PROPERTY * -
15. ROBBERY *

16, SEXUAL ABUSE OF A MINOR (Tmm%uing Ia not reqnh'e(l, 2.g.: Indecent Exposure,)
17 m__, {Any type or amonni)*

19. TRAFFICKH‘IG IN VEHICLES ﬂﬂg &AE&@D VL\S*

20. DEMAND FOR OR RECEIPY OF BANSOM
* Where the term lmposed Is at least one yeax, whether or oot any or all of that term ls stayed or suspended at the
time of sentencing,
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CT No. SCD255523
' Plaintiff, § DA No. ADY526

V.
| INDICTMENT
JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA, :

dob 06/06/83;

ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ,"
dob 12/19/77;

Defendants

PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY

Defendant - DNA Testing Requirements
GARCIA, JULIAN ESTRADA . DNA sample has been previously provided
MARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIEY : DNA sample required upon conviction

The Grand Jury of the Countyof San Diego, State of California, accuses the Defendant(s) of committing, in the County of
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indictment, the following ctime(s):

CHARGES

COUNT 1 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about March 25, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer,
deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other
consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise, as compensation ot inducement for referting clients ot

patients to petform ot obtain services ot benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law; in violation
of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. '

COUNT 2 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS '
On or about April 9, 2015, JULTAN ESTRADA GARCIA and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offet, deliver,
receive and accept a tebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration
whether in the form of money or otherwise, a5 compensation or inducement for referting clients or patients to

petform ot obtain services ot benefits pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR
CODE SECTION 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 3 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLATM .

On or about and between October 14, 2074 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occutrence of, and
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ACE Insutance - DME/hot/cold packs), in
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 4 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM °

On ot about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and
ALEXANDERKIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly {zil to disclose the occurtence of, and
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitiement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the
amounnt of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Amtrust Insurance - DME/hot/ cold packs) in

violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 5 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and
knowingly assist and conspite with another petson to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ESIS Tnsurance - DME/hot/ cold packs), in
viclation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3}.

COUNT 6 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and
knowingly assist and consplre with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occuttence of, an
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett Insurance - DME/hot/cold
packs), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)
COUNT 7 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefir and payment, and the
amount of a benefit and payment to which the petson was entitled (ICW Insurance - DME/hot/cold packs), in

violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 8 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did vnlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and
knowingly assist and consp1rc with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an
event that affected a peyson's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was endtled (Liberty Mutual Insurance - DME/hot/cold
packs), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3}.

COUNT 9 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occutrence of, and
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the oceurrence of, an
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the

amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Preferred Employer Insurance - DME/hot/cold
packs), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

COUNT 10 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and

ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occutrence of, and
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occutrence of, an
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sedgwick Insmance DME/hot/cold packs), in

viohtion of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 11 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULTAN ESTRADA GARCIA and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, and
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an
event that affected a person's initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitded (Zenith Insurance - DME/hot/cold packs), in
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3). -

COUNT 12 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015, JULIAN ESTRADA GARCIA and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occutrence of, and
knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the occurrence of, an
event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment, and the
amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitded (Zurich Insurance — DME/hot/cold packs) in
violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCID255523, CONSISTS OF 12 COUNTS,

"A TRUE BILL" Bonnie M. Dumanis

District Actorney, County of San Diego, State of Californin

Foreman of the Grand Jury Deputy District Atrorney

DATE: DATE:
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO WA G umbty
PEOPLE va Alsxander Klov Martnez Defendant | - e
PLEA OF GUILTY/MO CONTEST - FELONY Gourt Number: SCD256523
DA Numbar A[DYE2G -

i, the defendant in tha abovenentitled cass, in support of my plea of Gullty/No Contest, parsonally declare as
followa'

1. Of those charges now flled against me In this case, | plead GUILTY to the following
offenses and admit the enhancameants, allsgations and prior convictions as follows:
COUNT CHARGE ENHANCEMENT/ALLEGATION S
) ‘ LG 3215
3 PG 5505

PRIORS: (LIST ALLEGATION SECTION, CONVICTION SATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER, AND CHARGE)

)
have not bean inducad to ardar this plaa by any promisa or ragrasentation of any king, axcapt (State |
any agraamarit with the District Attorna i)
Sap Attachment "A” - fadaral plea agrasment in case nuber 15CR2321-BAS,

ra

3. tam aentering my plea frealy and voluntarily, without fear or thréat to me or anyone closely reiated to me, \

4. lunderatand that a piea of NG Contest s the same as a plea of Gullty for all purposes.

5. lamscberand my judgment is rot impaired. | have not consumed any drug, alcohol or narcotlc within
the past 24 hours.

CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

Ga. [understand that | have the right to be reprasantad by a lawyer at all stages of the proceedings. | can hire my own (
lawyer or tha Court wiii appolint 8 lawyer for me If | cannot afford ene.

{understand that as to all charges, allegationa and prior convictions filed agalnst me, and as to any facts that
may ba uged to Increase my sentence, now or In the future, T also have the following congtitutional riaiits. which
{ pow glve ug to enter my piea of gufltyfne contasgt:

&h. | have the right fc a gpaedy and public trial by Jury. 1 now give up this right,

8c. | have the right to confront and crasa-examing 3l the witnossas égaiﬂst ma. | now
flve up this right.

6d. | have tha Aght fo ramain allent (unless | choose to tesﬁfy on my own behalf),
[ row glva up this right.

8e. |have the rght to presarit gvidence In my behalf and to have the court subpoena my
wilnesses at no cost to me, | now giva up this right.
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| Defandant: |CASE NUMBER: W

Aexander Kiev Martings : BODE55523

7a,

7hb.

74,

7d.

Te.

7f.

10.

11.

12.
13,

imprisonment plus a term of mandatory sugervision; 80,000 fine; and

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEA OF GUILTY OR NO CONTEST

years parols or post-ralease
community supenvision, with return to custody for evary violation of a condition thereof, If | am not sentenced to
intprigonment, ] may be granted probation for a parlod up to § ysars or the maximum term of imprisonment,
whichaver Is greater. Ag conditions of probation | may be given up to a year in Jall custody, plus the fine, and any
other conditions deamed reascnable by the Court. { understand that if | violale any condition of probatlon | can be
sentanced to Imprisonmant for the maximum term as stated above.

| undarstand that§ must pay a regtitution fine (3200 - $10,000), that | will aiso be aubject to a suspended fine in the o
gams amount, and that { must pay full restitution to all victims. '

ek iptiaan thi a-eraasiqus/violent felony ('sirfke™) resulting in mandsatory denial of
probatlen, substantiajbeFicreasds penallipe;nd a term isth In Bny fal a. ‘
: 17

L,

| understand that | may racalve thls maximum punishment as 3 result of my pl?' 3y 8M0 years imprisonment or E@P

axclusion from admigalon to the U.S. and denlal of naturalization, Additionally, If this piea Is to an "Aggravated
Felony” fated on tho hack of this form, then | will be deported, excluded from admission lo the U.S,, and denlad
naturalization, ‘

{ undarstand that If { am not a U8, cltizen, this pisa of Gulity/No Contast mery resuit In my removal/deportat!on. ﬁgé g

i underatand that my plea of Guiity or No Contest in this case could result in revocation of my probation, mandatory ig\
supervision, paroia or post-ralease supsrvision In other cases, and consecutive sentences. N,
My attorney has explaired to me that other possitils consequences of this ptea may ba: )
{Circla epplicable consedquencss, ) ' : +
(1) Consecutiva santancas (9) Prison prior a, Limlted local cradits
{2} Loss of driving privileges (10} Mandatory Imprlsonment {290/serious/prior}
(3) Comrmltment lo Youlh {11) Mandatory State Prison b. Violent Felony (No cradit
Authority (12} Praaumptive [mprisonmant or max. 15%)
{4} Llfadima reglstation 8s an (13} Presumnptiva State Prison ¢. Prior Strike{s) (No cradit
arson / sax offender (14} Sexugily Violent Predator o max. 20%)
{5) Registralion ag a narcotlc / Law d. Murder on/aftor G/ 98
gang oflender (15) Posalble/Mar— ..y : . (Nezieait
(6} Cannot possess firaarms or hormee- Lupprassion (17} Loss of public assistance
ammunition : - Lurent (18) AIDS educatlon program
(7} Blood test and sallva sample | ,0) Reduced conductiwork (19) Other:
{8) __Priorable (incre.ou cradits
: punishment fo* "..u -
oifenses)

{Appeal Righta) ! give up my right to appaeai the followlng: 1) denlal of my 1538.5 motion, 2) Issues related to strike
priors {under PC sactions 687 (b )(i) and 1170.12), and 3) any sentence stipulatad haraln,

(Harvey Walver) The sentencing judge may consider my prior erimina history and the entire factuai background of
the case, Inciuding any unfilad, dismissed or stricken charges or. allagations or cases when grantlng probation,
erdering restitution or Imposing sentenca.

{Blakely walvar) | understand that as to any fact in sggravation that may be used to increase my sentence on any
count or aliegation to the upper or maxdmurn term provided by law, | have the constitutional tights listed In
paragraphs Bb-8e. | now glve up those rights and agree that the sentancing Judge may determine the existence or
non-existencs of any fact in aggravation, elther at the inftlal sentencing or at any future sentencing inthe sventmy
probation is revoked.

{Cruz Walver} Negotiated Disposition pursuant to PC 1192.5: | understand that |f pénding santencing | am. JdJ
arrestad for or commit another crime, viclate any condition of miy release, or willfully fail to appear for my prabation
Interview or my santencing hearing, the santence portion of this agreament will be cancellad. | will be sentenced

unconditfenally, and | will not be atiowed to withdraw my guilty/no contest plea(s).
(Arbuckio Watver) | give up my right to be sentenced by the Judge who accepts this plea. A
(Probat!on Repeori} | glve up my fdght lo a full probation report before sentencing. : : e
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|Defendant: CASE NUMBER:

Inlexander Klev Martinaz SCD255523

investigation of this casa axcept arid acknowledgs that if 1 listed any property
hers, | must also file a clalm with-the Impounding agency within 80 days after proncuncament of judgmeant or my
abllity to make a claim will explra,

14. (Evidence Disposal Walvar) | give up my Intarast in all non-blological property/evidance impounded during the @

PLEA

15, | now plead Gulity/No Contest and admit the charges, convictions and allagationa dascribed In paragraph #1,
above, | admit that on the dataa chargad, || (Describe facts as to aach charge end allegation)
Plaasa sen "Attachment A faderal pleg agrsemant i gase numbar 15CR2821-BAS for factyal basly

iy initiale above and any
adde ard corract.

aat
el Cu% ol a4
City State Zip
Telsphone Number: { H41) . Zhéc- H&ES

18. | declare under penaity of parjur{ that | have read, understood,
: attached adcdandum, and averything on the form and any atta

Dated: ___H 12 rf b Defandant’s Signature
Defendant's Address:

Defendant's Right Thumb Print
ATTORNEY'S STATEMENT
I, the attomay for the defendant in the sbove-antilled cass, persorally read and expleined to the defendant the entire contanta of
this plea form and any addandum themio. | glscussed ali charges and possihie defensss with the defendant, and the
consequences of thig plea, Including any immigrazlon *wnsequences f personslly o{;aewetf‘fﬁ&"aé'fé‘ham flil In and initial each
itarn, or read and initlal sack item to ackrowiedge fils/her understandlng and wejvers. |observed the gefendant date and sign this
formm and any adde 1dum | conewr in the de r'd nt's plea Snd wattar of consiiitienskdghis,

Oatad: C"{‘"

{Pdnt Nama)* " Wr Defsodant nature)
ircle oha: PO/ APD [ OA RETA#NED
INTERPRETER'S ATATRMENT (If Applicable)

i, the sworn e g intarpreter In Whis proceediry, ruly s’ L .Jaw"-‘a"t t.ua g g
contants of thi form 81G any aude. ou cwwondum. The defendant Indicated unde=. ..y of e cotusns of this furm ang ¢ =
addendum and than initlaled and sighed the form and any addendum.
Oated: : ]

(Print Name), Court Intarprater ' {Signature)

PROSEM ,UR'Z STATEMENT

The Pecple of the State of California, plaintiff, =_ ' . att~may, the District Altormey for the County of San Dlego, cencurs with the
defendant's pl iNg Contast as set forin ,ve /
Dated: / ? /{ \..,Jr’/w PRI (i —

(Print Name) DeputgStrict atomey {Signaturs)

COURT'S FINDING AND ORQER

The Court, having quastoned the dafendant and defandant's attormey congamling tha defendant's plea of Guilty/No Contast and
admissiong of the prier canvictions and allegatlons, If any, finds that: The dafendant understanda and voluntarly and Intelligently
walvas hlasher consfitulional rights; the defendant's ptes and admisslons are fresly and voluntarily made; the defendant

understands the nature of the charges and the ccnsaquences of the fg@a_nd admissions; and thera Is a factual basia for same.
The Court accepts the daefendant’s pfea and ad icng, and the deféndany is convicted tharaby.

Dated: ‘\/alﬁ/ 6

EUGEN#YHERABIDE Judge of the Suparior Court
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AGGRAVATED FELONIES

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CYTIZEN FOR AN “AGGRAVATED FELONY" AS DEFINED UNDER § U.S.C.

1101(a)(43), WILL RESULT IN REMOVAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLUSION, AND DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION.

“AGGRAVATED FELONIES” include, but are not imited to, the following crimes and any attempt or conspiracy to commit
such crimes, even if the conviction is a musdemeacor under state law: [The only exccptlon to the apphcablhty of state
misdemeanors is where the offense (as listed below) specifically requires a felony conviction,]

1. ANY CRIME OF VIQLENCE®

(Tncludes any offense that has as an element the use, attempted use, or threatenced use of physical force against the person or
property of another, or any felony offense that, by its natre, involves a substantial risk that physical force against the person
or property of another may be used in the course of committing the offense. (18 U.S.C. §16).)

BURGLARY (Except vehicle or vessel onless used as a residence,)

CHILD PORNOGRAPHY OFFENSES
CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES:

+

S B

10.
11,
12.

&}
b)

c)
d)
&)
)

FELONY POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTAMCE,
MISDEMEANOR POSSESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE when the defendant has previously been
convicted of any drug related offense.

_ POSSESSION FOR SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

TRANSPORTATION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTAMCE

MANT TACTUREMDISTRIBUTION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE AND CULTIVATION OF
Nf \RT P a\,}g -{

FELONY D.UL (Any vyl

FAILURETO APPEAR ON A FEL G ASE

FORGERX ™

FRAUD (Where Joss to victim or victims exceeds 310,000,

MONEY LAUNDERING (If amount over $10,000.)

MURDER '

PERJURY/SUBRQORNATION of Perjury or Bribery of a Witnass*
FIMEINGEANDERING/OPERATING A PROSTITUTION BUSINESS

13. RAPE,

14, RECEIVING S’l OLEN PROPERTY *

15, ROBBERY *

16, SEXUAL ABUSE OF A MINOR (Touching is not required, e.g.: Indecent Exposure.)
17, THEFT (Any type or amount)* |

© 18. TRAFFICKING Y FIREARMS AND EXPLOSIVES.

 WITH AL!E&QI) YINg®

20 EEMEQ&__.&E L OF RANSOM,
* Where the term imposed Is at least one year, whether or not any or alt of that term Is stayed or suspended at the
time of sentencing.
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CT No. SCD255524
Plaintiff, | DA No. ADY528
v. AMENDED
INDICTMENT
PHONG HUNG TRAN,
dob 01/12/65;

DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN,
dob 06/07/67;

ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ,
deb 12719/ 77;

Defendants

PC296 DNA TEST STATUS SUMMARY

Defendant . DNA Testing Requirements
TRAN, PHONG HUNG DNA sample required wpon conviction
NGUYEN, DAVID CUONG MANH ' DNA sample required npon conviction

MARTINEZ, ALEXANDER KIEV DNA sample required upon conviction

The Grand Jury of the Couaty of San Diego, State of California, accuses the Defendant(s) of committing, in the County of
San Diego, State of California, before the finding of this Indictment, the following crime(s):

CHARGES

COUNT 1 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about December 30, 2013, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offet,
deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other
consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 2877 - $5,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc.
to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for refeiring clients or patient to perform or obtain

~ services ot benefits pursvant to the California Workers’ Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE
SECTION 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 2 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about January 24, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver,
receive and accepe a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration
whether in the form of maney or otherwise (check no. 2876 - $5,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert
Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducemnent for referring clients ot patient to perform or obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 3 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS ‘

On or about Match 3, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver,
receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration
whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no, 2942 - $3,000 from Coastline Medica! Clinic, Inc. to Desert
Qasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for teferring clients or patient to petrform ot obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 4 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about May 2, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver,
receive and accept u rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and othet consideration
whether in the form of money or atherwise (check no, 3064 - $4,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert
Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for refetring clients or patient to perforin or obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers” Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215

COUNT 5 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS '

On ot about June 20, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offet, deliver,
receive and accept a tebate, refund, commission, prefetence, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration
whether in the form of money ot otherwise (check no. 3133 - $5,500 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert
Qusis Therapy Centet), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patient to perform or obrtain services ot
benefits pursuant ro the California Wotkers’ Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 6 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR RE‘FERRING
‘CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about July 18, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver,
receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration
whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3184 - $4,500 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert

© Ouasis Therapy Center), as compensation o inducement for refecring clients ot patient to petfortm or obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Worlers’ Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 7 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATIONFOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

Onot about August 4, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver,
receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration
whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3247 - §5,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert
Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or patient to perform or obtain services or
benefits pursuant to the California Workers® Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 8 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about Septernber 13, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer,
deliver, receive and accept a rebate, tefund, commission, prefetence, patronage, dividend, discount and other
consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3331 - $4,500 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc.
to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for Lefmring clients or patient to perform or obtain
services or benefits putsuant o the C'lhfornla Workers’ Compensation law, in viclation of LABOR CODE

SECTION 3215.

COUNT 9 -OFFER,DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about Septernber 13, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ. did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commissjon, preference,
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money ot otherwise (check no. 3330 -
$2,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Crosby Square Chiropractic), as compensation ot inducement for
referring clients or patient to petform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation
law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 10 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS o
On ot about November 20, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference,
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3447 -
$3,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for
referting clients or patient to petform ot obrain services or benefits pursuant to the California Wotkers” Compensation

law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTTON 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 11 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot abour November 24, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, delivet, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference,
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or othetwise (check no. 3460 -
$4,000 from Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc, to Crosby Square Chiropractic), as compensation ot inducement for
referring clients or patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation
law, in viclation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 12 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about December 2, 2014, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference,
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 1059 -
$5,000 from MD Phatma, Ine. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for referting clients
of patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation law, in
violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.

COUNT 13 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about January 8, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ did offeL deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and othet consideration whether in the form of money ot othetwiSe {check no. 1249 - $5,000 from
- Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for referring clients or
patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pussuant (o the California Workers’ Compensation law, in violation

of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

" COUNT 14 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about January 8, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a tebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the fotm of moeney or otherwise (check no. 1250 - $4,000 from
Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement fot referring clients ot
patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation law, in violation
of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 15 -OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about January 21, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,

dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3563 - $4 000 from
Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center}, as compensation or inducement for referring clients or

patient to perform or obtain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation law, in violation
of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215.

COUNT 16 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/ PATIENTS

On or about January 21, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER"
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whethet in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 3564 - $3,500 from
Coastline Medical Clinic, Inc. to Crosby Square Chitopractic), as compensation ot inducement for referring clients or

patient to petform ot obtain setvices ot benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation law, in violation
of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 17 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about February 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission , preference,
pattonage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 1373 -
$4,000 from MD Pharma, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Centet), as compcnsatlon or inducement for referring clients
or patient to perform or obtain services ot benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compensation law, in

violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215. -

COUNT 18 -OFFER,DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about February 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and
ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference,
patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money ot otherwise {check no, 1374 -
$4,500 from MD Pharma, Inc. to Crosby Square Chiropractic), as compensation or inducement fof referring clients or
patient to perform ot obtain setvices or benefits pursuant to the California Workers” Compensation law, in violation

of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215, -
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 19 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about April 22, 2015, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN did offer, deliver, receive and accept a tebate,
refund, commission, preference, patronage, dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money
ot otherwise, as compensation ot inducement for referring clients or patients to perform or obtain services or benefits
pursuant to the California Workers' Compensation law, in violation of LABOR CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 20 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCEPT COMPENSATION FOR REFERRING
CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On ot about Aptil 28, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ did offer, deliver, receive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money ot otherwise (check no. 1383 - $7,500 from
MD Phatma, Inc. to Desert Oasis Therapy Center), as compensation or inducement for rc:fcning clients or patient to -

petform or obrain services or benefits pursuant to the California Workers’ Compenbﬁtjon law, in vzohtlon of LABOR
CODE SECTION 3215. .

COUNT 21 - OFFER, DELIVER, RECEIVE AND ACCETPT COMPENSA’I‘I ON FOR REFERRING
' CLIENTS/PATIENTS

On or about April 28, 2015, PHONG HEUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER
KIEV MARTINEZ. did offer, deliver, teceive and accept a rebate, refund, commission, preference, patronage,
dividend, discount and other consideration whether in the form of money or otherwise (check no. 1381 - $8,000 from
MD Phatma, Inc. to Crosby Square Chiropractic), as compensation ot inducement for referring clients or patient to

- perfarm or obtain services or benefits pursuant o the California Wotkers’” Compensation law, in violation of LABOR
CODE SECTION 3215,

COUNT 22 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose

the oceutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttence of, an event thar affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Amtrust North America
Insutance — prescription drug benefits) in violaton of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And it is further alleged that priot to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(¢). .
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 23 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between Seprember 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose

the occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingty fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Berkshire Hathaway Insurance —
prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

" And itis further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of tie felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
Cournty, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTTON 550(e). .

COUNT 24 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose

~ the oceurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefic and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ESIS Insurance - prescription
drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){3).

- And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony viclation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).

COUNT 25 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose

the oceuttence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insutance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entided (Gallagher Bassett Insurance ~
prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And icis further alleged thar prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony vielation PC550(a), case number 9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(g).-
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 26 - INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM -

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose

the occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
oceutrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (The Hartford Insurance —
ptesctiption drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And itis further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony vielation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(g).

COUNT 27 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose

the occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which fthe person was entitled (ICW Insurance — prescription
drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTTON 550(b)(3).

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clata
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550{¢}.

COUNT 28 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose

the oceurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occuttence of, an event that affected a person’sinitial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Liberty Mutual Insutance —
ptesctiption drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And itis fuether alleged that ptior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
- NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
~County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTTON 550(e).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 29 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and berween September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the oceurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Meadowbrook Insurance —

prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 5350(b)(3).

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e). '

COUNT 30 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspite with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected 4 person’s initial and continued tright and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Sedgwick Insurance —

prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony vielation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).

COUNT 31 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the.
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (State Compensation Insurance

Fund — prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){(3).

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(¢).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 32 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occuttence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person'sinitial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Tristar Insurance - presctiption
drug benefits), in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the défendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).

COUNT 33 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfuily conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entidement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich Insurance — prescription
drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And itis further alleged that priot to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).

COUNT 34 - INSURANCE‘ - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the oceurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Amtrust Notrth America
Insutance — toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){(3).

And it is further alleged that ptior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(c).

Page 10 of 14, Coutt Case No. SCD255524



CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 35 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
. MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlemnent to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Berkshire Hathaway Insurance -

toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And itis further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), casc number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTTION 550(e).

COUNT 36 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between Septemlﬁer 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose

the occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (ESIS Tnsurance — toxicology
screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And it is further alieged that ptiot to the commission of the ebove offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony viclation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the-meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).

COUNT 37 -INSURANCE - CONCEALEVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
oceurtence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefir and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett Insurance —
toxicolagy screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b){3).

And itis further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH

NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).
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- CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 38 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurtence of, an event that atfected a person’sinitial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitied (The Hartford Insurance —
toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

. And itis further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number 9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).

COUNT 39 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail o disclose

the occutrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with anothet person to conceal and knowingly fail ta disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Liberty Mutual Insurance —
toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the feleny violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(¢).

COUNT 40 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

- On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG-
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEVMARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occurtence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occutrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (State Compensation Insurance -
Fund - toxicology screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b}(3).

And itis further alleged that ptiot to the -comr;iission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(x), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(¢).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 41 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November.27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich Insurance — toxicology

screenings) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).

COUNT 42 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

- On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another persen to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s inital and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Gallagher Bassett Insurance —

compound cream prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense; the defendant; DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(¢).

COUNT 43 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlernent to an insutance benefir and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Meadowbrook Insurance —
compound cream presceiption drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And it is further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicred of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).
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CHARGES (cont'd)

COUNT 44 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On ot about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose

the oceurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and

payment, and the amount of a benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (State Compensation Insurance
Fund - compound cream prescription drug benetits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And itis further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony violation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(e).

COUNT 45 -INSURANCE - CONCEAL EVENT AFFECTING CLAIM

On or about and between September 18, 2014 and November 27, 2015, PHONG HUNG TRAN, DAVID CUONG
MANH NGUYEN, and ALEXANDER KIEV MARTINEZ, did unlawfully conceal and knowingly fail to disclose
the occurrence of, and knowingly assist and conspire with another person to conceal and knowingly fail to disclose the
occurrence of, an event that affected a person’s initial and continued right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and
payment, and the amount of 4 benefit and payment to which the person was entitled (Zurich Insurance — compound

cream prescription drug benefits) in violation of PENAL CODE SECTION 550(b)(3).

And itis further alleged that prior to the commission of the above offense, the defendant, DAVID CUONG MANH
NGUYEN had previously been convicted of the felony viclation PC550(a), case number C9921419, Santa Clara
County, 2002, within the meaning of PENAL CODE SECITON 550(e).

THIS INDICTMENT, NUMBERED SCD?255524, CONSISTS OF 45 COUNTS.

"A'TRUE BILLY ' Bonnie M. Dumanis

Disttict Antorney, County of San Diegp, State of California

Foreman of the Grand Jury Deputy District Attorney

DATE: , . DATE:
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO M o 1 oot

PEQPLE g Alexander Kiev Martinaz Dafondant

Court Number: SCD2554524
OA Number ADY528

i, tha defandant In the ahove-entitlad case, In suppart of my plea of Guilty/No Contest, parsonaily deciare as
follows:

PLEA OF GUILTYING COMTES T - FELONY

1. Of those charges now flied against me inthis case, | plead Bl lTY to the foliowing
offenses and admit the anhancemanis, allegaticns and pror convicre .~ as foilows, —
COUNT : CHARGE o dANCEMENT/ALLEDATION
12 LE 3215
22 PC 5303}

PRIQRS: (LIST ALLEGATION SECTION. CONYVICTION DATE, COUNTY, CASE NUMBER  AND CHARGE)

2. thave notbeen inducad to enter this plaa by ary promise or rsprasantation of any kind, except: (State ﬁ ig )
any ggreemant with the Distefct Adormay.) : J
Spa Afachment "A%: faderal wlea sorapmant o oaae nyrmher 15CE2821-8A5

3. lam entering my plea freely and voluniadly, witnout faar or threat to me 0. anyane closgaly refated to me.!,

4, {understand thal a plea of No Contes’ is the same a3 a plea of Guilty for aif pursoses. !ﬁ
.;lir’

I.LJ!

| am sotar and my judgmentis not impaired. | have not consumed any drug, alconof or narcotic within l
the past 24 hours. :

COMSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

ga. |understand that!hava tha right to be raprasentad by s lawyer at all stages of the preceedings. | can hire my own @
lawyer or the Court will appoint 8 lawyer for me If | cannot afford ona.

——

Lunderstand that as to all charges, slisgations and prioy convictions fllad agalnat me, and as to any facta that

may he usad to increass my santanca, now or in the future, | alao have the following sonafitutionn] rights, which
Lnow glve un to enter my plea of gullty/no sontest:
8b. | have the right to 2 speedy and public rlal by lury. | now glve up this right.

Be. Thave the right to canfront and cross-axaming all the witnassas againstms, | now
ghva up this right.

8d. | have the right to rgmain sient (unless | chooge to tastify on my own behalf). l— LEK&‘
I now give up this right.” ' 4

Be. |hava the right to present svidencs In my bebalf and to have the court subpoena my @
witnesses at no cost to me. | now give up this right.

IDET CR-1Z (Hay, W' 1) PLEA OF GUILTYNO COMTEST - FELONY Pogn 157 d
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7a.

Th,

fo.

d.

7a.

.

10.

11.

12,
13.

CONBEQUENCES OF PLEA QF GUILTY DR NO CONTEST

{ undarstand that | may recelve this maximum purishmant as a resuft of my plea; Y 8M0 years impriacnmant or @
Imprigonment plus a term of mandatory aupervision; $80.000  fine; and yoars pacole or posl-reloase
commiunity suparvision, with retum to custody for every viclation of a conditlon’thareot. If | am not sentonced to
impriscnimant, | may be granted probatlon for a paricdd up to § years or the maximum tam of impriscnmant,
whichever ls greater. As conditions of probation | may te glven up to a year In jall custody, plus tha fine, and any

othar condttions deamad reasonabie by the Court. [understand that if | violate any condition of probation | can be
santenced to imprisonment for the maximum term as stated above. '

t understand that | must pay a restitution fine (3200 - $10,000), that | will aise be subject to a suspended fins In the
game amount, and that | must pay fufl restiution to all victims. :

L8 FEarousMolant & W.nq nm ey of
Tand & ey in S rizon % Rilurs ¢ S0, Bt s

I undarstand that if | am not & .5, citlzen, this plea of Guilty/Na Contest relult in my ramoval/daportation,
axcluslon from admission to the U,S, ard denial of naturalization, Additionaily, If this plea is to an “Aggravstad
Fatony" listad on the back of this form, then | will be deported, excluded from admisslon 1o the U8, and denied
naturalization. : '

] understand that my plea of Guilty or Mo Contest in this case could result In revocation of my probation, mandatory
supervision, parclas or pest-ratease supaivision In othar ¢ases, and congacutive sentences,

My atiorney has explained to me that sther possibia conssquances of thls plea may be:
{Circle applicable consaguances.)

(1) Consecutive sertences (8} Prison oricr &, Limited local cradits

(2) Loss of driving privilages {1&3 Mandatory imprisonment : {290/sarious/prior)

{3}  Comenftment o Youth (1) Mardatory Stats Prisen b. Violent Falony (No credit
Authority 12) Prasumptive Imprisonmernt © ormax, 15%)

(4) Lifetime registration as an {13} Prasumptive State Prison ¢. Prior Strika({s} (Mo cradit
arson f gex offorder (14) Saxually Violart Predator fo max, 20%) .

{5y Reglstration as a narcotic / Law d. Murder en/after 6/3/98
gang oifender {13} PossiblaMandatory (No cradit)

{6} Cannot posseass firgarms or hormong suppression {17) Loss of pubilc assistance
ammunition Iraatment 218) AIDS aducation program -«

7)  Blood test and saliva sampie (18} Reducad conductiwork 18} Other:

8) Priorable (Increased -cradits
punighrment for future
offensas)

{Appeal Rights) | give up my right to appsai the fellowing: 1) denlzal of my 1538.5 motion, 2) Issues related to strika
priors (undar FC sactions 867 ()-()) and 1170.12), and 3) any sentence stipulatad haraln.

(Harvay Walvar) The santencing Judge may censider my prior eriminal history and the entlre factual background of
the case, Including any unfilad, dismissed or stricken charges or allegations or cases when granting probation,
ordering restitution or Imposing sentencs.

{Blakefy walver) | understand that as to any fact In aggravation that may ba used to increase my sentence on any [ﬁ)
count or allegation to the upper or maxirmum tenm provided by law, | have the constitufional rights listed In
paragraphs 8b-8e. 1 now give Up thosa rights and agres that the sentencing judga may dstermine the existence or
non-existence of any fact In aggravation, sithar at the initlal sentencing or at any future  sentancing in the svent my
probatlon Is revolied. ' '

{Cruz Waivar) Negoflated Digposition pursuant to PC 1192.8: | understand that if pending sentencing | am
arrasted for or commit another crime, viciate any condition of my release, or willfully fail to appear for my probation
Intarview or my sentencing heardng, the senfence portlon of this agresment will be cancallad. | will be sentenced
unconditionally, and | will not be allowed to withdraw my guitty/no contest plea(s).

{(Arbuckie Walvaer} | give up my right to be seniarced by the judgs who accepts this plea.
(Prokation Report) | glva up my right to a fult prabation report before sentencing.

SOBC CRM-O1Z (Rer. 9111) PLEA OF GUILTY/NO CONTEST - FELONY




. '[jefgndant: CASE NUMBER:
Ll.itaxandar Ky Martirez \SCD255524

14, (Evidance Disposal Walvar) | give up my Infersst in all noc-iployical propstly/evidence impounded during the
invastigation of this case axcept and acknowladgs that if | listsd any property
harg, | must glso file a clalm with the Impounding agency within 80 days after proncuncament of jJudgmant or my
ability to make a clalm will axplrs.

PLEA

15. | now plead Gulktnyo Contest and admit the charges, convictions and allegations describad in paragraph #1, vy
above. | admit that on the dates charged, I: (Desoribe fauls as to each charge and allagation)

Pleasa ssa Altachment "A”: fecaral piga dorsement o case mmmgﬂzgm&mmm o

pot ok

s gem above and any

13. tdeclare under peraltly of perjury that 1 have read. urderstcod fay :
aF t.ze and corract.

attached addendum, and everything on the form and any amagh

Dated: &y l ERITA Defendant’s Signature < /LA
3 i H e o v,f u "
Cofandant’s Address: 134 M~M l,c:gd w!mg ot ‘Aﬁ ol
frast
Tl Coaen i RowrIIp!
Ciy Hlate Zip

Telophons Number: { H42,) 236 = B85 5

Rafandart’s Right Thumb Print

ATTORMEY'S BTATEMENT
|, the adtornay for the defendant in the aboveeniitled caze, parscrally read and axplaired to tha defandant the entive coniants of
this plaa form and my adéandum thera's. | discussed all chargas and possible defenses ;;,}g‘m afsndart, and the

consacuencay of this plea, includling any ‘mmsgmﬁﬂ cengacuences. | ,;arsmral!y ohsarved the ettt o and nitial aach
iarn, of raad and Initial sach tam to acknowiedgd histher understanding and waivers., | obse;mefd'* 4 defendant date and sign this

forers aned any addan ‘m{n } copour i the da?éﬂts plaa and W‘E:f of constitution
Datad: iflf (\ :?‘ Mf/ ;
LA (Prnt Mama; Aﬁw?ﬁ?for Da ndan’é %W\mum}

; ’Gircle ona: APGIO EDy
INTERPRETER'S STATEMENT @)
|, tha swom tanguage irterpratar In thig pr@cﬁ% ing, truly fransiated for the defondant the sntire
cortents of this form end any atrached addendum. Tne tafendart Indleated undarstanding of ihe contents of this form and any
addandum and then Inftiated and signed the form and any addendum.

Dated:

{Print Nama) Court Intarpratat (Signatura)}
PROSECUTOR'S STATEMENT
Tha Paop!a of the Stata of Califarnia, plaint®, by lta attornay, the District Altornay for the County of San Dlego, concurs with the
defandant's plaa of, Gulltyfio Contest as sot forth above.

Dated: /W /{ 7 //?/V/LIM /////////W#

{Print Nama) Puty Disthict Atcrney ' (Signatura)

COURT'S FINDING AND ORDER :
The Court, having quasﬁmnad the deferdant and defendant's attormsy concerning the defandant’s plea of Guilty/No Contast and
admisslans of the prior convictions and allegations, if any, firds that: The defendant understands and voluntarlly and intelligantly
waives histher constitutional dghts; the defendant’s plea and admissiors ars freely and voluntarly mads; the defendant
undergiands the natura of the chargas ard the o ﬂovae%gncrsa of tha plaa and admissions; and there is a factual basis for same.
The Court accepts the defendant's plea and sdmissienis] and the defondant 1s gefivicted thereby.

e o {4_ | ‘ EUGEN!A EVRM#DE

580 CRUD12 (o, W1 ) PLEA OF GUILTY/NG CONTEST - FELONY P

Judge of the Superor Court




AGGRAVATED FELONIES

ANY CONVICTION OF A NON-CTITZEN FOR AN “AGGRAVATED FELONY” AS DEFINED UNDER 8 US.C.
1101(a)(43), WILL RESULT IN REMOYAL/DEPORTATION, EXCLUSION, AND DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION,

“AGGRAVATED FELONIES” ipctude, but are not lirtited to, the following crimes and any attempt or conspiracy to commit
such crimes, even if the conviction is a misdemesnor under state law: [The only exception to the appHeability of state
misdemennors iz whers the offense (as lated below} specificelly requires a felony conviction.]

].l

(]ncludesany offense that has 84 an element the use, airernpted use, or threatened use of physical force agatust the person or
property of another, or any felogy offense that, by it nawre, involves a substantial risk that physical force against the person
or property of another may be used in the course of committing the offense, (18 U.B.C. §16).}

2. BUBGLARY (Except vehicle or vensel unlass used uy a residence,) *
3. CEILD PORMOGRAPHY QFFEMSESR

4. CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES:

a) FELONY POSSESSION OF ANY COMTROLLED SUBSTANCE, :

b MISDEMEANOR POSISESSION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTAMNCE when the defendant bas previously beeu
convieted of gy drug related offense.

¢) PUSSESSION FOR SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

d) SALE OF ANY CONTROLLED SIUBSTANCE

g} TRANSPORTATION OF AMY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
MANTFACTURE/DISTRIBCTION OF ANY CONTROLLED SUBRSTAMCE AND CULTIVATION OF
MARLJUANA '

5. FELONY D.ILL (Any type)*
6, FADLURE TDAPPEAR OM A FELONY CASK
*, FORGERY *
8. FRAUD (Whars loss to victim or victlos exceeds $14,000.)
9. MOMEY LAUMDERING (If amount over $10,000)
10, MURDER
1 PERJURY/SUBORMAT I{)“*I of Perjary or Brtbety of 2 Wiinesy*

12, PIMPING/PANDERING/OPERATING A PROSTIFUTION BUSINESS
13. RAPE
14, RECEIVING STOLEN PROPERTY *
15, ROBBERY * |
16. SEXUAL ABISE OF A MINOR (Toucting Is not required, e.g.: Indecent Exposure.)
17. THEET (Any type or amount)”

8. TRATFICKING IM FIREARMS AND EXPLOSIVES.
19, TRAFFICKING IN VEHICLES WITH ALTERED YINS*
20, DEMAND FOR OR RECEIPT OF RANSOM

* Whore the term bmposed s at least one yeax, whather or not any or all of that term Is stayed or suspended at the
thne of aenteming.

BOSC CAM-012 (Rov. 1) CPLEA OF QUILTYINO CONTEST - FELONY Pagn b of 4
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF iCALIFORNIA ' ﬁ
. ]
June 2014 Grand Jury
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Case No. 15 C’R 282 1 BAS
Plaintiff,. zﬂgfgzm:@_@ﬂ; "
v, : Title ‘18, U.8.C., Sec. 371 -
_ ' Conspiracy to Commit Honest
RONALD GRUSD (1}, Services Mail Fraud, Mail Fraud
GONZALO PAREDES (2), 4 and Violate Travel Act; Title 18,
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ (3}, U.s.C. Secg. 1341 and 1346 -
RUBEN MARTINEZ (4), Honest Services Mail Fraud
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK Title 18, U.S8.cC.
MEDICAL GROUP (5), Sec, l952(a)(1)(A) and (a)(3)(A) -
WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY ({6), Travel Act; Title 18, U.S.C.
LINE OF SIGHT, INC. (7), Sec. 2 - Aiding-and Abettlng,
DESERT BLUE MOON (8), Title 18, U.S.C,.
: ‘ Sec., 98l({a) (1) (C ), and Title 28,
Defendants. U.8.C., Sec. 2461 {c¢) - Criminal
Forfeiture
The Grand Jury charges, at all times relevant:
INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS
THE DEFENDANTS AND OTHER PARTICIPANTS
1. Defendant RONALD GRUSD (“GRUSD”) was a physician who had
been licensed by the State of California since 1987, Defendant
GRUSD's primary area of practice was radiology, and he was certified
by the American Board of Radiclogy in Diagnostic and Nuclear
Radioclogy. Defendant GRUSD was an officer of several entities,

VHC:CPH:FAS: (2)nlv:San Diego
11/5/15
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including defendants CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP and
WILLOWS  CONSULTING  COMPANY, and Oaks Diagnostics and Advanced
Radiology. ' _

2. Defendant.GONZALO PAREDES (“PAREDES”) was an administrator
for several of defendant GRUSD'’s entities, including defendants
CALIFORNIA IMAGING HNETWORK MEDICAL @GROUP and WILLOWS CONSULTING
COMPANY, and Advanced Radiology.

3. Defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ worked as a marketer and
administrator on behalf of Dr. A, a licensed chiropractor with three
ciinics in the Southern District of California. Defendant ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ owned and operated defendant LINE OF §8IGHT, INC., a
professional corporation incorporated in Nevada whose principal place

lof business was in Calexice, California.,

4. Defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ worked as a marketer for Dr. A,
goliciting patients for treatment at Dr. A's clinic in Calexico,
California. Defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ owned and operated defendant
DESERT BLUE MOON, a professional corporation incorporated in Nevada..

5. Defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP
("CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK”) was a California Corporation formed in
August 20C7, which listed on its website locations in Los Angeles,
Beﬁerly Hills, 8San  Diego, Fresno, Rialto, Santa BAna, Studio City,
Bakersfield, Calexico, East Los Angeles, Lancaster, Victofville and
Vigalia, According to its website, defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING
NETWORK's principal business address was 8641 Wilshire Blvd., Ste.
105, Beverly Hills, Califoxnia. BAmong the various services defendant
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK offered were diagnostic imaging services
and “Extracorporeal Shockwave Therapy.” Defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING
NETWORK 1listed defendant GRUSD as its chief executive officer, chief

2
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financial officér, secretary and only director. Defendant GRUSD was
also the signatory on defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK's bank
accounts.
6. Defendant WILLOWS CCONSULTING COMPANY (*“WILLOWS CONSULTING"”)
was a California corporation, formed in June 2011, which listed 8641
Wilghire Blvd., Ste. 105, Beverly Hills, California as its principal
business address. Defendant GRUSD was listed as its president ahd the
only signatory on defendant WILLOWS CONSULTING's bank accounts. |
7. Defendant LINE OF SIGHT, INC., a Nevada Corporation formed
in October 2010, listed defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ as a director.
Defendant LINE OF SIGHT's principal place of business was in Calexico,
california, and defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ was. the only authorized
signatory on ‘defendant LINE OF SIGHT's bank accounts.
8. Defendant DESERT BLUE MOON, a Nevada Corporation formed in
August 2001, listed defendant RUBEN MARTINEZ as a director, Defendant

RUBEN MARTINEZ was the only authorized signatory on DESERT BLUE MOON’Ss

bank accounts.

9. The Oaks Diagnestics, a California corporaktion formed in
1989 and doing business as Advanced Radiology, listed 8641 Wilshire
Blvd., Ste. 105, Beverly Hills, California as its principal business
address. Advanced Radiolegy provided 8hockwave, nerve conduction
velocity and electromyogréphy testing and diagnostic imaging services,
Advanced_Raaiology listed defendant GRUSD as its president. Defendant
GRUSD was ‘the only authorized signatory on Advanced Radiology's bank
accounts.

10. Dr. A was a chiropractor licensed to practice in California,

who operated three clinics specializing in chiropractic medicine.
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11. Physicians, including medical docters and chiropragtors,
owed a fiduciary duty to their patients, requiring physicians to act
in their patients' bkest intefests, and not for their own professional,
pecuniary, or persoqal gain. Physicians owed a duty of honest
services to their patients for decisions made relating to the care of
those patients, including the informed choice as to whether tc undergo
ancillary medical procedures and, if so, an informed choice 'as to the
providers of such ancillary medical procedures.

12. Defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT
and DESERT BLUE MOON worked with and on behalf of Dr., A in the
lreferral of workeré‘ compensation patients for ancillary medical
procedures,

CALIFORNIA WORKERS” COMPENSATION PROGRAM

13, The California Workers’ Compensation System (“CWCs”)
required that employers in California proviﬁe workers'’ compensation
benefits to theilr employees for qualifying injuries sustained in the
course of théir employment. Under the CWCS, all claims for payments
for services or benefits provided to the injured employee, including
medical and- legal fees, were billed directly to, and paid by, the
insurer. Most unpaid claimg for payment were permitted to be filéd as
liens against the employee’s workers’ compensation claim, which accrue
interest until paid in an amount ordered by the Workers' Compensation
Appeals anrd or an amount negotiated between the insurer and the
service or benefits provider. The CWCS was regulated by the
California Labor - Code, the California Insurance Code, and the
California Code of Regulations, and was administered by the California

Department of Industrial Relations.
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14. CWCS benefits were administered by the employer, an insurer,
or a third party administrator. Ther CWCS required. claims
administrators to authorize and pay for medical care that was
“reasonably required to cure or relieve the injured worker from the
effects of his or her injury,” and includes medical, surgical,
chiropractic, acupuncture, and hogpital tréatment.

15.‘ california law, including but not limited toc the California
Business and Professions Code, the Califcrnia Insurance Code, and the
california Labor Code, prohibited the éffering, delivering,
soliciting, or receiving of anything of value in return for referring
a patient for ancillary medical précedures.

ANCILLARY MEDICAL PROCEDURES

16. . Extracorporeal Shecckwave Therapy (*shockwave”) as used by
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced
Radioclogy was a treatment modality that used low energy sound waves to
initiate tissue repair of musculoskeletal conaitions. The treatment
was -not a surgical procedure and patients were not placed under
anesthesia. Shockwave had been approved by the Federal Drug
Administration only for the treatment of chronic lateral epicondylitis
(tenniskelbow) for which thé symptoms were unresponsive to standaxd
therapy for more than six months.

17. Nerve conduction velocity (“NCV”) was a test employed in
electrodiagnostic medicine to see how - fast electrical gignals move
through a nerve and was used to diagnose nerve injury or damage.

18, Electromycgraphy (“EMG*) was a test émployed in
electrodiagnostic medicine to evaluate and record the electrical

activity produced by skeletal muscles and was used tc diagnose nerve
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injury or damage; an EMG was often performed in conjunction with NCV
testing. - .

19. Diagnostic imaging services include magnetic resonance
imaging {(“MRI”).

Count 1

CONEPIRACY TO COMMIT HONEST SERVICES MAIL FRAUD
AND VIOLATE THE TRAVEL ACT, 18 USC § 371

20. Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictﬁent are realleged and
incorporated by reference.

21.. Beginning on a date unknown and continuing through at least
August 2015, within the Southern District of California and elsewhere,
defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALQC PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN
MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING
COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., DESERT BLUE MOCON, and others known and
unknown did knowingly and intentionally conspire with each other to:

a. commit Honest Services Maill Fraud, that is, knowingly and
with the intent to defraud, devise and paiticipate in a mateiial
écheme to defraud and to deprive patients of the intangible right to
Dr. A's honest services, and cause mailings in furtherance of the
scheme, in violation of'Title 18, United States Code, BSections 1341
and 1346;

| b. commit Mail Fraud, that.is, knowingly and with the intent to
defraud, devise a material SCheme_to defraud, and to obtain monéy and
property,‘ by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses,
representations, promises, and omissions and concealments of material
facts, and cause mailings in furtherance of ‘the scheme, in vioiation

of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341; and
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c. use and caﬁse_to be used facilities in interxstate commerce
with intent to promote, manage, establish, carry on, distribute the
proceeds of; and facilitate the promotion, management, establishment,
carrying on, and distribution qf the proceeds of an unlawful activity,
that is,‘bribery in violation of Célifornia Labor Code Sections 139.3,
139,32, and 3215, California Business and Professions - Code
Section 650, and . California Insurance Code Section | 750 - and,
thereafter, to promote and attempt to perform acts to promote, manage,
establish, carry on, distribute the proceeds cf, and facilitate the
promotion, management, gstablishment, carrying on, and distribution of
the proceeds of such unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18,
United States Code, Section lQSZia)(l){A) and (a}) {3} (A).

FRAUDULENT PURPOSE
22, It was a purpose of the conspiracy to fraudulently obtain
money from CWCS insurers by submitting claims for ancillary procedures
that were secured thrcugh a pattern of bribes to Dr. A, and to those
acting with him and on his behalf, in.exchahge for the referrél of
patients to particular providers of ancillary medical procedures, in
violation'of Dx. A's fiduciaxry duty to his patients, and concealing
from insurers the bribes that rendered the claims unpayable under
california law. _
MANNER AND MEANS

23. The conspirators used thé following manner and means in
pursuit of their frauaglent purpose:

a. It was a part of the conspiracy that defendants GRUSD,
PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING, knowing
that the payment of per-patient referral fees was unlawful, offered to
péy bribes to Dr. A, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ{ LINE OF SIGHT

7
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and DESERT BLUE MOON in order to influence the referral of Dr. A’'s
workers’ compensation patients to defendant CALIFORNIA.IMAGiNG NETWORK
and other entities operated by defendant GRUSD and PAREDES.

b. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, and. DESERT BLUE
MOON agreed to accept per-patient referral fees from defendants GRUESD,
PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, W'ILLOWS CONSULTING and others --
either directly or indirectly - in exchange fox the referral of Dr.
A's workers’ compensation patients to defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING
NETWORK and other entities operated by defendant GRUSD and PAREDES.

c. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON
and others axranged to have defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA
IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and others conduct ancillary
medical procedures on Dr. A's workers’ compensation patients in
exchange for unlawful per-patient referral fees.

a. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
concealed from patients, and intended to cause Dr. 5 to conceal from
patients, the bribe payments Dr. A and defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ,
RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, AND DESERT BLUE MOON received from
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWQ
CONSULTING in exchange for referring patients for ancillary medical
procedures, in violation of Dr. A’s fiduciary duty to Dr. A's patients
and in violation of the California Labor Code.

e. It was a further part of the conspiracy that proceeds from
insurance claims paid to defendant CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK were
funneled through bank accounts by defendants GRUSD and PAREDES to a
bank account in the name of defendant WILLOWS CONSULTING, which

8
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supplied the kickback payments to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN
MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON and others.

£. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING,
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON
and others obscured the true nature of their financial relationships
in order to conceal -their cgrrupt bribe payments for patient
referrals. |

g. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and RUBEN MARTINEZ discussed via telephone
calls, emails, and in-pérson meetings the workers’ compensation
patients who had .been corruptly referred for ancillary medical
nrocedures to defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK in
exchange for kickbacks.

h. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants

GRUSD, PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and RUBEN MARTINEZ utilized

interstate facilities, including cellulaf telephones and ewmail, in
order to coordinate the referral of patients for ancillary medical
procedﬁres, knowing that such referrals were predicated on unlawful’
per-patient kickback payments.

i. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and RUBEN MARTINEZ falsely labeled correspondence
concerning lists of workers' compensation patients who had been
corruptly referred for ancillary medical procedures as bertaining to
“marketing hours” and similarly misleadiﬁg phrases.

. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING
falsely characterized ﬁhe bribes tc Dr. A and defendants ALEXANDER

9
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MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, and DESERT BLUE MOON as
péyments .for “professional services,” when 1in fact the corrupt
payments were made exclusively for the vreferral of patients for
ancillar? medical procedures.

k. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING
used the mails to send bribes to Dr. A and defendants ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ, RﬁBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON, in exchange
for the referral of Dr. A's patients for ancillary medical procedures.

1. It was a further part cf the conspiracy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING
used the mails té send bills to insurers for services provided to
patients they had preocured by paying bribes to Dr. A and other
cqnspirators.

m. It was a further part of the conspiraéy that defendants
GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA TIMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and
others acting on their behalf concealed from insurers and patients the
material fact of the kickback arrangements, which wexe in violation of
California state law, that, led to the referrals.

n. Using the manners and means described above, defendants

GRUSD, PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING

NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING, LINE OF SIGHT and DESERT BLUE MCON

submitted and caused to be submitted claime in exg¢ess of 51 million
for anciilary medical ‘procedures procured through the  payment of
bribes.

//

//

//
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OVERT ACTS

24. In furtherance of the conspiracy and in order to effect the
objects thereof, the defendants and other co-conspirators caused the
following overt acts in the Southern District of California and
elsewhere:

a. On or about November 7, 2014, defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ
emailed defendant PAREDES a list of patients that had been referred to
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, . CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced
Radiology for ancillary medical prqcedures.

b. On or about ‘November 7, 2014, in éonsideration fer the
referral of patients, defendaﬁﬁs GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING
caused a bribe to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF
SICGHT acting on beshalf of Dx., A,

a. On or about November 25, 2014, defendant ALEXANDER MARTINEZ
emailed defendant PAREDES a list of patients that had been referred to
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced
Radiology for ancillary medical procedures,

d. On or abbut December 3, 2014, in consideration for the
referral of patients} defendante GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING
caused a bribe to be paid to defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and DESERT BLUE
MOON acting on behalf of Dr. A,

e. on or about December 15, 2014, 1in consideration for the
referral of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING
caused a bribe to be paid to defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and DESERT BLUE
MOON acting on behalf of Dr. A.

£. On or about December. 17, 2014, in consideration for the

referral of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING
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causéd a bribe to be paid to defen@ants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF
SIGHT acting on behalf of Dr. A,

g. On or about December 17, 2014, defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ
and RUBEN MARTINEZ exchanged emails in an effort to reconcile the
lists of Dr. A’s patients referred for ancillary medical procedures
and the bribes that had been paid and were due and owing from various
providers, including defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING
NETWORK and WILLOWS CONSULTING.

h. On or about January 12, 2015, defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ and
DESERT BLUE MOON caused payments to ke made to Dr. A and deféndant
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, which represented a portion of bribe payments
received from various provide;s, including defendants GRUSD, PAREDES,

CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWS CONSULTING, ‘while acting on

‘behalf of Dr., A and his patients.

1. On or about March 2, 2015, deféndant GRUSD sent a text
message to Dr., A 1n order to facilitate a meeting to discuss the
referral of patients for ancillary medical procedures and the payment
of bribes.

| 3 on or about March 4, 2015, defendants GRUSD and PAREDES met
with Dr. A in order to discuss the referral of patients for ancillary
medical procedures and the payment of bribes.

k. On or about March 4, 2015, in consideration for the reférral
of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING caused
brikves to be paid to Dr. A and to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and
LINE OF SIGHT acting on behalf of Dr. A 7

1. On or about March 6, 2015, defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and
LINE OF SIGHT caused a payment'to be made to Dr. A, which represented
a portion of bribe payments from varicus providers, including

12




10

11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

T 26

27

28

defendants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNiA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWS
CONSULTING.

m, Cn or abecut April 2, 2015, defendants ALEXBNDER MARTINEZ and
RUBEN MARTINEZ caused aﬁ email to be sent to defendant PAREDES with a
list of patients tha; had been referred to defendants GRUSD, PAREDES,
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and Advanced Radiology for ancillary
medical procedures.

n, On or about April 6, 2015, in consideration for the referral
of patients, defendants GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS CONSULTING caused a
bribe to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF SIGHT
acting on behalf of Dr. A |

0. On or about June 5, 2015, defendant GRUSD spoke with Dr. A
and confirmed thg amounﬁ cf bribes to bhe paid for the referral of
patients to defendahts GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and
Advanced Radiolegy for ancillary medical procedures.

p. On or about July 16, 2015, in censideration for the refefral
of patients referred, defendants GRUSD, PAREDESIand WILLOWS CONSULTING
caused bribes to be paid to defendants ALEXANDER MARTiNEZ, RUBEN
MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT and DESERT BLUE MOON acting. on behalf of Dr. A
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

Count 2 .
. HONEST SERVICES MAIL FRAUD, 18 U.8.C, §§ 1341, 1346 AND 2

25, Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are realleged and
incorporated by reference.

26. Beginning on a date unknown and cdntinuing through at least
August 2015, within the Southern District of California and elsewhere,
defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING
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COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT BLUE MCON knowingly and with
the intent to defraﬁd, devised a material scheme to defraud, that is,
to deprive patients of their ‘intangible right to Dr. A's honest
gservices.

27, Paragraphs 22 through 24 of this Indictment are realleged
and incorporated by reference as more fully describing the schene to
defraud, that is, to deprive patients of their intangible right to
Dr. A's honest services,

28. Cn or abeout March 10, 2015, within the Southern District of
California and elsewhere, defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES,
ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL
GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT
BLUE MCON, for the purpcse of executing the scheme and attempting to'
do so, knowingly caused the following mail matter to be placed in a
post office and authorized depository for mail matters to be delivered
by the United States Postal Servicé: a claim for reimbursement for
ancillary medical procedures for J. F. secured through the payment of
bribes to Dr. A and those acting on his behalf.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341, 1346

and 2.,
Counts 3-8
TRAVEL ACT, 18 USC §§ 1952(a) (1) {A), (a)(3) {(A) AND 2
29, Paragraphs 1 through 18 are realleged and incorporated by
reference,
30, = Beginning on date unknown and continuing through at least

August 2015, within the Scuthern District of California and elsewhere,
defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUF, WILLOWS CONSULTING
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COMPANf, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT BLUE MCOON knowingly used and
cause to be uged facilitiles in inters;ate commerce with the intent to
promote, manage, establish, carry on, distribute the proceeds of, and
facilitate the promotion, management, establishment; carrying on, and

distribution of the proceeds of an unlawful activity, that is, bribery

in violation of California Labor Code

3215

California Insurance Code Section 750 and, thereafter, to promote
attempt to perform acts to promote, manage, establish, carry

distribute the proceeds of, and facilitate the promotion, management,

, California Business

establishment,

carrying on,

unlawful activity as follows:

and Professions

Sections 139.3, 139.32, and
Code Section 650, and

and

on,

and distribution of the proceeds of such

Cct

- Date

Use of Fadility in

Acts Performed Thereafter

4|11/ 7/14 fDe

11/25/14

Defendant ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ emailed defendant
PAREDES a list of patients
that had been referred to
defendants GRUSD, PAREDES,
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK
and Advanced Radioclogy for
ancillary medical '
procedures.

Defendants GRUSD, PAREDES
and WILLOWS CONSULTING
caused bribes to be paid to
defendants RUBEN MARTINEZ
and DESERT BLUE MOON acting
on behalf of Dr. A on
December 3 and 15, 2014,
and to ALEXANDER MARTINEZ
and LINE OF SIGHT acting on
behalf of Dr. A on
December 17, 2014.
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ct Date Use of Facility in Acts Performed Thereafter
Interstate Commerce
6 Defendants - ALEXANDER .

1277724
‘ fﬁiﬁ“f'" eMARTINEZ ‘and- RUBEN -
MARTINEz_exchanged emalls

 ;were due Al
.| defendants:; , -
- | CALTFORNIA MAGING NETWORK w,ﬂ_ﬁ,g;
*| and: WILT.OWS [CONGULTING {behal

:3]2/15‘

Defendant GRUSD sent a
text megsage to Dr. A to
facilitate a meeting to
discuss the referral of
patients for ancillary
medical procedures and the
payment of bribes.

On or about March 4, 2015,
in consideration of
patients referred for
ancillary medical
procedures, GRUSD and
PAREDES met with and paid’
bribes to Dr. A and to -
defendants ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ and LINE OF SIGHT
actlng on behalf of Dr A

5:ii'Defendants’ ALEXANDER~*“V
~o ) MARTINEZ. and RUBEN..

16




10

11

12

13

14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

Ct Date Use of Facility in Acts Performed Thereafter
Interetate Commerce
9 6/5/15 | Defendant GRUSD spcke on On or about July 16, 2015,
the telephone with Dr. A in consideration of
and confirmed the amount patients referred for
of bribes to be paid for ancillary medical
the referral of patients procedures, defendants
“1to defendants GRUSD, GRUSD, PAREDES and WILLOWS
PAREDES, CALIFORNIA CONSULTING paid pribes to
IMAGING NETWORK and defendants ALEXANDER
Advanced Radiology for MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ,
ancillary medical LINE OF SIGHT and DESERT
procedures. BLUE MOON acting on behalf
of Dr. A
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Sections lQSQ(a)(l)(A), {a) (3) (A} and 2z,

. ‘ FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

31. Paragraphs 1 through 30 of this Indictment are realleged and
incorporated as if fully set forth herein for the purpose of alleging
forfeiture pursuant to Title 18, United States Code,
Section 981{a) (1) (C) and Title 28, United | States  Code,
Section 2461 (c).

32. Upon conviction of the offenses of Conspiracy, Honest
Services Mail Fraud and Travel Act as alleged in Counts 1 through 9,
defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO‘PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN
MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING
chPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT BLUE MCON shall forfeit to
the United States all right, title, and interest in any property, real
or personal, that constitutes or was dexrived from proceeds traceable
to a.vioiation of such cffensesg, including a sum of money equal to the
total amount of gfoss proceeds derived, directly or indirectly, from

such offenses,.
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33. If any of the abdve described forfeitable property, as a
result of any act or omission of defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO
PAREDES, - ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA IMAGING
NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT,
INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON: {a) cannot be located upon the exercise of
due diligence; {b) has been transférreq or sold to, or deposited with,
a third'party; (c) haé been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the
Court; (4d) hés been substantially diminished in value; or (e) has been
commingléd with other property -which cannot be divided without
difficulty; it was the intent of the United States, pursuant to
Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p) and Title 18, United
States Code, Section 982(b), to seek forfeiture of any other property
of defendants RONALD GRUSD, GONZALO PAREDES, ALEXANDER MARTINEZ, RUBEN
MARTINEZ, CALTFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK MEDICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING
COMPANY, LINE OF SIGHT, INC., and DESERT BLUE MOON up to the value of
the forfeitable property described above;

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 98l (a) {1} {C),
and Tiﬁle 28, United States Code, Section 2461{c).
DATED: November 5, 2015,
A TRUE BILL:
- ////ﬂ\\kjf//ﬁL"ﬂﬁf7#<;
| oreperson k\\w)
LAURA E. DUFFY :

United States Attorney

By: \E;V/éayﬂijZjﬁzi;\_!) By Lé;&f;&&qﬁﬁ%%iig fo,

VALERTEH Y 'OH CAROLINE P. HAN
Assistant U.S. ttorney Asgigtant U.S8. Attorney

o\l .
FRED A, SHEPPARD .
Assistant U.S. Attorney
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LAURA B, DUFFY

United States Attorney

FRED SHEPPARD

Asgilstant United BStates Attorney

California Bar No, 250781 | CLERkUE.
VALERIE H. CEU e &mnﬁgﬁﬁgﬁmmcmw
assistant United States Attornay =% A

California Bar No., 2417089
CARQLINE P. HAN

Assistant United States Attorney
California Bar No, 250301
Federal Office Buillding

880 Front Street, Room 6293

San Diego, California 92101-8893.

Attorneys fo* Unlted States of America

UNITED STATES DIATRICYT COURT
BOUTEERN DISTRICT OF CALIFCORNIA
UNITED STATES OF AMRRICA, Casz No, 15CR2821~Ba3
Flaintiff, _
v. PLER ACRIEMENT

ALEXANDER MARTINEZ (3},
LINE OF SIGHET, INC, (7),

Defendants,

IT IS HEREBY AGREED between the plaintiff, UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA, through its counsel, Laura E. Duffy, United States Attorney,
and Frad Sheppard, Valerie H. Chu amd Careline ¥P. Han, Asaistant
United States Attorneys, and defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE OF
SIGYT, INC. {hereaftar “Line of 8ight*), with the advice and consent
of Xnut Johnson, counsel for defendant, as follows:

/7
/1l
//
//
//
//
e

Plea Agreement : Def. Initials
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THR PLRA
L. This ag&aement ia intendsd to bind the following parties:
a. befendant Alexander Martineez;
b. Defendant Line of Sight;
¢. The Unlted States Attorney’s Office (“USAO”) as to Criminal
Case Number 15CRZ821-BAS pending in the Unite& States
District Court for the BSouthern District of Callifornia
(herginafter “the federal case”); and
d. Tha San Diego County Dlstrict Attorney’'s Qffice (“SDCDACY)
as to Criminal Case Numbers SCD255519, BCD255520, SCh255521,
SCD255522, SCDR55523, and SCD255524 currently pending in the
Superior Court of California, County of San Diege
{hersinafter “the state cassa").

2, This plea agreement cannet bind any other federal, state or

1 local prosecuting, adminiatrative; or regulatory authorities, although

the USADQ or 8DCDAC will bring this plea agreemant to the attention of
other authorities 1f requested by Defendants. - ,

3. This plea agreement is part of a “package” disposition. For
Defendants to recelve the benafits of thia agrsement, co~defendants
Ruben Martinez and Desert Blue Moon, Inc., (hereinafter “Pleading Co-
Defendants”), must agree to a aeparate plea agreement with the U3AQ
and SDCDAD and all four defendants must enter pleas of guilty,
purguant to their respectlve plea agreemants, in each federal and
state case in which they are currently charged no later than April 22,
2016.

i, With regards to the federal case, defendants Alexander
Martinez and Line of Sight agres to walve Indictment and plead guilty
te a Superseding Information charging Conapiracy to Commit Honast
Sarvices Mall Fraud and Health Care Fraud, in violation of 18 1U.5.¢.
[s 1349,

, 5, In exchange for Defendanta’ gquilty plea in the faderal case,
the USAC agrees to: (1) move to dismisza the charges ig tha ind

Plea Agreement ' 2 Def. Initials
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against Defendants without prejudice when Defendants are sentenced,
and (2} nct prosecute Defendants thersafter on such dismissed charges
unless either Defendant or either Pleadling Co-Defendants brsaches the
plea agreement crx any of tha guilty pleas entered pursuant to this
plea agreement is aset aside for any reason., Defendants expreasly waive
all copstitutional and statutory dafenses to the rsinstatement of any
charges dismissed pursuant to this agreement.

G, With regands to the state «cages, defendant Alexander
Martinez agrees to plead guilty to the following charges 1in the
following cases:

a. Cagse Washer 3TDP25551%, People v. Grusd, et al.: Count 44,

unlawfully receive and accept compensation for referral of
patients in violatlon of california Labor Code section 3215;
and Count 28, unlawfully conceal an event affecting an
inaurancs eolaim in violatien of <California Pénal Cods
section 550(b){(3). The combined maxlmum penalty for both
counts i3 5 ywars, 8 months in prison and a $59,000 fina.

b, Caza Mumber SCDZ255520, People ¥, Khan, et al.: Couat 27,

anlawfully receiva and accept compensatlon for referral of
patients, in wviolation of California Labor Code, Section
3215; and Count 13, unlawfuily conceal an event affecting an
insurance clailm, in vlolation of california Penal Code,
Saction 55C(b){3). The - combined maximum penalty for both
counts is 5 ysars, 8 months in priscon and a $60,000 fine.

¢. Case Numbar 5CD255521,'.F80ple v, Go, et al.: Count N

unlawfully recelve and accept compensation for referral of
patients, in violatlen of California Labor Code, BSection
3215. The maximuim peralty 1a 3 years in prison and a 310,000
fine, |

d. Caze Number SCLRIRAG52Z, People ¢, Schames, et al.: Count 1,

nnlawfully recelves and accept compensation for refaerral of
patients, in violation of California Labor Code, Bectiocn

3215; and Count 13, unlawfully conceal an event affect an

Plea Agreement 3 Def, Inltials
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insurance claim, in violatlon of California Penal Code,
Section 550(b}{(3). The combinad maximum penalty for both
counta ls § vears, 8 months in prison and a $60,000 fine.

&, Cgss Number $CODR235323, People v. Garcla, et 3l.: Count 2,

unlawfully receive and accept compensatlon for referral of
patienta, in viclation of Califernia lLabor Code, BSection
3215: and Count ﬂ, unlawfully conceal an event affecting an
ingurance c<lalm, 4in wviolation of California Penal Code,
saction 530(b) {3}, The combinegd maximum penalty for both
counta is § years, & montha 1ln prison and a 560,000 fine,

f.Case Number SODRS3524, Peowle v, Tran, et al.: Count 12,

unlawfully reecsive and accept compensatlion for referral of
patlents, in violatibn of cCalifornia Labor Cede, Ssction
3215; and Count 22, unlawfully conceal an event affecting an
insurance claim, in violatlon of Califernia Penal -Code,
Zactlon A350(b) (3). The combined maxlmum penalty fLor both
counts is 5 yedars, 8 months in prison and a $60,000'fin§.

7. Pursuant to California sentencing law, the overall maximum
penalty for all ths atate caassg is 13 yeahs in prison and a $310,000
fina, '

8. In exchange for Defendant Alexander Martinez’s plea to the
abova-refarenced eleven count5 in the state cases, the SDCDAO agrees
to dismiss the remaining counts against him with a walver pursuant to
People v. Harvey, 25 Cal.3d 7854 (1979). The SDCDAO further agrees to

recommend that Defendant ba sentenced to no more than 10 years in
prisen to be served concﬁrxently with his sentence in the fedexal
case, that he recelve the atandard rastitution fine, and that the
court order full restitution. Coples of the written and signed plea
agresments in the state cases ara ilncorporated herein.

/!
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NATURE OF THE QFFEMNZE
A FEDERAL CASE: BLEMENTS EXPLAINED

Defandants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight understand that

Hthe offansa to which Defendants are pleading guilty has the following

elements: .
Consplracy (139 U.5.C. § 1345)]

1. There waa an agreemant batweeg two or more parsona to
commit Honast Services Mall Fraud and Health Care
Fraud; and

2. The cdefendant entered inte the agreement knowing of at
least onz of its objects and intending to "help
accomplish it, |

Hanagt 3arvicas Maill Fraud {18 7.8.C. § 1341 and 1345]

=

The defendant devised or knowingly participated in a
schene te deprive a victim of his or her right to a
doctor’s honest services;

The scheme consiated of soliciting and facilitating the

4\

rocelpt of kickback payments from suppliers of health-
care services and products to ba paid to the doctor in
grchange for referrals; -

3. The doctor, as a healthcare professional, owed a
fiduciary duty to the victim;

4, The defendant acted with the intent to defraud by
depriving the wvictim of his or her right to the
doctor’s honest services;

5. The defendant’s act was material; that is, it had a
natural tendency to iInfluence, or was capable of
influencing, a person’s acts; and '

6. The defendant usad, or caused someone to use, the mails
to carry out or to attempt to carxy out the scheme or
plan, |
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Haath Care Fraud (18 0.85,0, § 1347]

1. The defendant knowingly executed, or attempted to
gxdcute, a scheme or artifice to defraud a health-care
benefit program, or te ohtain money or property ownad
by, or under the custoedy or centrol oﬁ, é health-care
benefit program by means of false or fraudulent
pretengss, raepresentatlons, or promises.

2. The false or Ffraudulent pretenses, representations, orx
promises related to a material fact.

a. The defendant acted willfully and intended to defrand.

4. The defendant did 80 in copnection with the delivery
of or payment for health-care benefits, ditems, of
azrvices,

Corporats Criminal Liability

PDefendant Line of Sight ackoowledges that a corporation ias
ragponaibla fér the actsa of itz agents oz amployees, dons within the
scope of thair autherity. The dsfendant further acknowledges that the
acts of a corzpoeraztion’s agent or employse are within the scope of his
6r her authoxrity Lf those acts are done on the corporation's behalf or
for its benefit in the performance of the agent’'s genaral duties,

B. FEDERAL CASE FACTUAL BASIS: ELEMENTS UNDERITOOD AND I\DMI’I_"I‘ED ‘

Defendants alexander Martinez and TLine of Sight have fully

discussad the fagts of the federal case and ths state cases with
dafense counsel. Defendants Alexander Martinez and Lipe of Sight have
committed each of the elemants of Conspiracy to Commit Honest Services
Mail Fraud and Health Care Praud, in wiolation of 18 U.B5.C. § 1349,
and admit that there is a factual basis for the gullty pleas in the
federal case. Specifically, both defendants admit:

1. Defandant ALEXAHDER MARTINEZ worked as a marketer and
administrator on bshalf of Dr, Staveﬁ Rigler, a licensed chiropractox
with three clinles in the Bouthern District of California. Defendant

ALEXANDER MARTINEZ owned and operated defendant LINE OF SIGAT, C.,
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| professioﬁal corporation incorporated in Nevada whose principal
place of buainess was In Calexico, California.

2. The California Workera!’ Compensation System  (“CWC8Y)
required that employers in California provide workers’ c¢ompensation
benefits to their employees for quallfying injuries suatained in thae
course of their employment. Under the CWCS, all claima-for payments
for services or benefits provided to the injured arpleyees, incluctlng
medical and legal fees, were billed directly to, and paid by, the
insurer, CWC3 benefits were adminlstered by the employer, an ipsurer,
or a third party administrator. The CHWCS raequired clailms
administrators to authorize and pay for medical care’ that was
“reasonably recuired to cure or rslieve the injured worker from the
offects of his or hsr injury,” and anludas medical, surgical,
chiropractlc, acupuncturs, and hosplital treatment. CWCS insurers were
private plans, affecting commerce, under which medical benefits,
itema and B¢ :yvices wers provided to indlviduals, and therefore wers
“healith care henafit programs” under 18 U.8.C. § 24(b).

3. From 2012 thruudh Auguat 2015, within the Southern Dlstrict
of California aad elsswhere, defendanta ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and LINE
OF SIGHT knowingly and intentionally agreed with each other and with
others, including ROWALD GRU3D, GONZALO PAREDES3, RUBEN MARTINEZ,
CALIFORNIA- IMAGING NETWORK MzDLICAL GROUP, WILLOWS CONSULTING COMPANY,
DESERT BLUE MOON, to commit the offenses of Honest Services Mail
Fraud, in violatien of 18 0.§5.C. §§ 1341 and 13448, and Health Cara
Fraud, in violation of 18 U.5.C, § 1347

4, A.purpose of the conapirary waa to £raudulently obtain money
from California Workers' Compensation System (“CWCS") insurers by
rsﬁbmitting claima for ancillary procedures that were secured through
a pattern of bribes to Dr. Rigler, and to those acting with him and
on hils behalf, in exchange for the referral of patisnts to particularx
providers of anéillary medical procedurea, In viclation of bDr.
Rigler’s fidueiary duty to his patients, and concealing from insurers
the bribes that renderad the ciaima unpayable under California law.

2
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5. It was & part of the canspiracy that defendants ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, and DESERT BLUE MOON agreec
to aceept per~patien’t referral fees from co-defendanta GRUSDH,
PAREDRES, CALIFORNIA IMASING MNDITWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and others -~
elither directly or indirectly -~ in exchange for the refarral of Dr.
Rigler's workers’ compensation patients to defendant CALIFORNIA
TMRGING NETWORK and other entities operated by defendant GRUSD and
'PAREDES.

6. It was a further part of the conapiracy that defendants
ALBXKANDER MARTINZZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON
and others arcvanged to hava defandants GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA
IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and aothers conduct anecillary
medical procedurss on Dr. Rigler’s workers’ compsnsation patients in
exchange for unlawful per-patient referral fees.

7. It -waa a further part of the conapiracy that defendants
concealad from patlents, and intended to cause Dz. Riglar to conceal
from patianta, the bribe payments Dr. Rigler and defendants ALBXANDER
MARTINAZ, RUSBEN MARTINEZ, LINE OF 8IGHY, AND DESERT BLUE MOON
received from defencdanta GRUSD, PAREDES, CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK
and WILLOWS COMSULTING in exchange for zreferring patients for
anciliary medical procedures, in violation of Dr. Rigler’s fiduciary
duty teo Dr. Rigler's pa-tientﬂ and in vlolation of the California
Labor Code.

8, It was a £urther part of the cons;airacy that defsndants
SRUSD, PAREDES, CALYPORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOW3 CONSULTING
usad the malls te gend bribes to Dr. Rigler and defendants ALEXANDER
MARTINEZ, ROUBEM MARTINEZ, LINE OF SIGHT, DESERT BLUE MOON, in
exchange for the referral of Dr. Rigler’s patients for ancillary
nedical procedurss.

5, It was a further part of the conapiracy that defendants
GRSZD, PAREDES, CALIPORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, and WILLOWS CONSULTING
used the mails to send bills to insurers for sgervices provided to
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patients they had procured by paying bribes to Dr. Rigler and other
conspirators,

10, It was a further part of the ceonaplracy that defendants
GRUSD, PARRDES, CALITORNIA IMAGING NETWORK, WILLOWS CONSULTING and
others acting on their behalf concealed Irom lnsurers and patienta
the material fact of the kickback arrangements, which were in
violation of California state law, ‘that lsd to the referrals.

1L, Using the mannrers and means described above, defandants
GRUSD, PARZDES, ALEXANDER MJ'X_RT.INEZ, RUBEN MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA
IMAGING NETWORK, WILLCOWS CONSULTING, LINS OF SIGHT and DESERT BLUR
MOON submittaed and cacsed to be submitited clalms in excesa of 31
nillien for anclillary medical procsdures procured through the payment
of bribes. The defendants further admits that each of. the
allegationsg at paragraphs 21,'22, 23, and 24 of the'indictment in the
federal cage are true and correct and can be proven beyond a
reasonable doubt, including each of the manner and means in paragraph
23, and gach of the overt acts listed in paragraph 24, In
particular, defendants admlt that on or about March 6, 2015,
‘defendants ALEXANDER MARTINEZ and ‘LINE OF SIGHT caussd a payment to
be made to Dr. Rigler, which represanted a portion of bribe payments
from varlous providers, including defendanta GRUSD,  PAREDES,
CALIFORNIA IMAGING NETWORK and WILLOWB CONSULTING.

In addition, the defendants agree and admit that the intended
losg  encompassad by thelr total criminal conduct exceaclad 33.5
million.

/
//
/!
!/
//
//
/
/
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C. STATE CAS®3: ERLEMENTI EYPIATINED

Defandant Alsxandar Martinez understands that the offensag to
which he is pleading guilty ilo the state cases have lthe following

alements:

Unlawfuily Accest Compensation for Referrxal of fatlenty
(California Labor Coda, Section 3215}

1. Defendant Alexander Martinesz did, acting individually,
or through thelr employsss or agents offer, dalivar,
racelye or accapi;

2. Any ccnslderation to or from any peraon;

3. As compensation or inducement fory

4. The refarral of patiénts, clients or éus&omera to
perform or obtain sesrvices or benafits; and ‘

5. Involving workers’ compensation insurance.

Onlawiully Caﬁ:aﬁl an EBvant Affecting an Insurance Claim

[Califevrnla Penal Code, S=¢tion 550(h){3)]

1. Defandant dld, kncwingiy asalat, or conapirs with
another, to conceal or fall to disclese the occurrence
of an avent;

2. That affects any person’s right or entltlement +o an
ingurance bensfit or payment, or amount of benefit or
paymant; and '

3. With the specific intent to defrand.

3

TALE CASERZ FACTUAL BASES: RELEMENTE ONDERITOOD AND ADMITTED

L.
Defendant Alexander Martinez has fully discussed the facts of

the state cases with dafenas coungal. NDefendant Alexander Martinez
has committed each of the elements of unlawfully receiving and
accepting compensation for referral of patients, in violatlon of
California Labor Code, Bsction 3215, and unlawfully Aconcealing an
avent affecting an insurance clalm, in violatlon of California Penal
Cods, 8sction 550(b) (3), and admita that there 1s a factual basia for
the guilty pleas in the state cases, The following facts are true
and undisputed:
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On or about and betwean Dacember 16, 2012 and Jﬁly ls, 2015,
Defendant BAlexander Kiev Martinez and Ruben Marcial Martinez dig
unlawfully receive and accept 34 checks totaling approximately
$150,000 prepared by Gonzalo Erneato Paredea and signed by Ronald
Selwyn Grusd as compensation for referring workers’ compensation
patisnta of Dr. Staven Rigler from Rigler’s San Diego, Hscondido and
Calexico clinlcs.

On cor about March 4, 2015, defendants Defendant Alexander Kilev
Martinez and Ruben Marcial Martinaz did unlawfully recelve and accépt
check #3327 for 58,500.00 prepared by Gonzalo Ernesto Paredes and
slgned by Reonald Selwyn Gruad as compensation for referring workers’
compensation patients of Dr, Steven Riglex.

On or about and betwzen Decembar 16, 2012 and November 27, 2615,
Defendant Alexander Klev Martinez and Ruban Marcial Martinez did
unlawfully aid angd abet and conspire with Ronald Selwyn Grusd and
Gonzal§ Erneate Paredesa to frauduleatly bill at least 13 insurance
companles fqr EMG/NCY, MRIL, and Shockwava testing of workers’
compenaation patients of Dr. Steven Rigler from Rigler‘s BSan Dilego,
1Escondido and Calexico ¢linlca by concealing the payment of klckbacks
for these patlents, .

on or about and between June 25, 2014 and November 27, 2015,
defandants Alexander Klev Martinez and Ruben Marcial Martinez did

unlawfully ald and abet and conspire with Ronald Selwyn Gruad and
Gonzale BErnesto Paraedes to fraudulently bill 3tate Cowmpensatilon
Ingurance fund ({SCIF) Zfox EMG/NC?l testing of workers’ compensation
patlents of Dr. Staven Rigler from Rigler's San Diego, Escondide and-
Calexico clinics by concealing the payment of Xickbacks for thesas

patients,
" b, scpesss2o

"on or about September 18, 2014, defendant Alexander Kiev
Martinez did unlawfully receive and accept a check for $3,000.0d

signed by Amir Cbaildullah Khan and alded and abetted by Farhat Fatima
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Khan, as compensation for referring workers’ compensation patients of
Dr. Steven Rigler f£rom Rigler’s San Diego, Escondide and Calexico
clinics,

On or about January 23, 2015, Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez
did unlawfully receive and accept ancther check for $1,500.00 signad
by Amir Obaidullah Khan and aided and abetted by Farhat Fatima Khan,
as compensation for referring workers’ compensation patlents of Dr,
Steven Rigler from Rigler’s 3an Diego, Escondlde and Calexico
clinica.

On or about and betwesn June 23 2014 and November 27, 2015,
Cefendant Alexandsr Kiev Martinez did unlawfully aid and abet and
consplre with Amir Obaidullah Khan and Farhat Fatima Xhan to
fraudulently bill at least eleven insurance companiea for ADLs, AIM |
studies, paln assessments, IEK8e, and echocardiograms of workers’
compensation patients of Dr. Steven Rigler from Rigler’s San Diego,
Zsecondido and Calaxice clinics by congealing the payment of kickbacks
for these patlents. ' | '

On or about and betwean June 23, 2014 and ¥November 27, 2015,
Defendant Alexander  Kiev Martinsz did unlawfully ald and abat and
conspire with Amir Obaldullah Khan and VFarhat Fatima Khan to
fraucdulently bill State Compensation Insurance Fund (8CIF} for pain
asgessments of workars’ compsnsation patients of Dr, Steven Rigler
from Rigler’s San Diego, Escondido and Calexico cliniecs by concealing |
the payment of kickbacks for these patiants.

c. SCD255521

On or about March 18, 2015, Defendant Alexandar Klev Martinez
did unlawfully receive a check for 58,000.00 signed by Emmannel Ed Go
and alided and abetted by Christopher Eumanuel Go an compeanzation for
rafarring workers’' compensation patisnts of Dr. Steven Rigler from
Rigler’s San Diego, Eacondido and Calexice clinics.

On or about March 20, 2015 Defendant Alexander Eiev Martinez did
unlawfully recelive cradit for a 43,000 cash kickback handed to Dr.
Rigler by Christopher Emmanuel Go at the behest of Rmmanuel Bd Go for
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referring workers'’ compensation patients of Dr, B8taven Rigier £rom
Rlgler’s San Diego, Bscondldo and Calexleo clinica, ' '
d. 3CP255522 |

On or about October l; 2014, Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez
did unlawfuliy recelve a check Ffor $20,000 signed by defendant
Jennlifer Loulse White and aided and abeited hy Bric Jay Schames as .
compensation for referring workers’ compensation patients of . Do
Steven Rigler from SBaan Disgo, Escondido and Calexico clinlca,

on orx about and between September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015
pPafendant Alexander Klev Martinez did unlawfully ald and abet and
conspire with Jennifer Touise White and Erxic Jay Schames to
frauduiently‘bill at least eleven insurance companies for ANS studies
"and Slezep studles of workers’ campensationk patients‘ of Dr. Steven
Rigler from San Diego, Escondldoe and Calexico clinics by concealing
the payment of kickbacks for these patlents.

On or aboit and bebwean September 1, 2014 and September 1, 2015,
Pefendant Alexandsr Risv Martinez did wunlawfully aid and abet and
consplre with Jennifer Loulse White and Rric Jay Schames to
“fraudulently bill The Hartford Insurance Cémpany for ANS atudies of
workers' compensation patients of Dr, Steven Rigler from San Diego,
Escondido and Calexico clinics by concealing the payment of kickbacks
for thess patients. ' '

h o. 80D238523

On ox about Aprll 9, 2015, Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez did
mnlawfally receive and ascept 51,300 in cash as compensation for his
role in refarring patients to obtain benafite pursuant to the‘
*California Workers. Compensation law.

On or about and between October 14, 2014 and November 27, 2015,
Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez did knowingly asslst and conspire
with ancther perxason to conceal the exiétemca of illegal kickback
payments for the refarral of patients for whom services were rendersd
khot/cold packs) and based upon which were bills sent to insurance

icompanies {including ACE Insurance) in ths California Workars

1
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Compensation System, which constituted the occurrence of any event

e —

that affected a person’s right and entitlement to an insurance
benefit and payment.

_ On April 38, 2015, Defendant Alexander Klev Martine:s accepted a
81,300 cash payment from his assoclate, Dr. Steven Rigler. Defendant
Alexander Xlev Martinez knew that $1,300 cash payment came directly
from a §5,000 cash payment made earlier that same day frbm Julian
Estrada Garclia to Rlgler. Defandant Alexander Kiev Martinez knew at
the time he received and azceptad the $1,300 cash payment from Rigler
that the money wasg part of the proceeds of an illegal kickback
payment by Garcia to Rigler in exchange for the referral of patients
by Rigler to Garcia, o that darclia could provide teo the patients
durable medical equipment Xnown as “hot/cold therapy units”, and so
that Garcia could send billles for the hot/cold therapy unita to
various California Workers Compensation insurance companies.

on or about and between October 14, 2015 and November 27, 2015,
did unlawfully aild, abst, and conspire with Garcia to fraudulently

bill at least 1¢ insurance companies for the hot/cold therapy unita. .

The 341,300 caash payment to Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez was
compensation for his role iIn ailding, abetting, and faclliitating the
illegal referrals of hot/cold'therapy units by providing Garcla with
patlent information necessary for Garcia to pmend the units to
patients and for Garcla to process the paperwerk needed to bill
insurere for the hot/cold therapy unlts, Defendant Alexander Riev
|Martinez wam aware that Garcia intended to and did send bille to
mulbiple California Workera Compensatlon insurers £for the hot/cold
therapy uwnite illegally referred to Garcila by Rigler,

f. 8CDa55524

on or about November 24, 2014, Defendant Alexander Kiev Martinez
did unlawfully receive and accept §5,000 check #1059 from MD Pharma
Faa compensation for hia role in referring patients to obtailn benefits

pursuant to the California Workers Compensation law,

mw)
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On or about and between September 18, 2014, and November 27,
2015, Defendant Alexander Xiev Martinez -did koowingly aaslist and
conspire with ‘anather peraen to conceal tha existence of illegal
kickback payments for the referral of patients for whom sarvices were
rendered (prascriptlon drug benefits) and based upon which were billa
sent to inaurance companiea (imeluding  Amtrust  North America
Insurance) dn the Californla Workers Compensation S8System, which
conatltuted the ocourrence of any event that affected a person'sa
right and entitlement to an insurance benefit and payment,

On or about and khetween December 30, 2013 and Novembar 27, 2015,
.befendant Alexander Klev Martinez did unlawfully receive and accept,
elther psrsonally or through Dr. 8teven Rigler as an Intermedlary, 20
checks totalling approximately 591,000 wrltten on the accounts of
sither Coastline Medical Clinic or MO Pharma, Inc., a8 compensation
for referring workera’ compensation patients of Dr. Steven Rigler
from Rigler’s 8San Diege, Escondide and Calexlco clinics, Tha
patlents ware referred to Pheng Hung Tran, M.D. for pain managemsnt
garvices, Jincluding but not limited to prescription.drug banefits,
toxlecology screenings, and compeund cream prescription drug bansfits,
The approximately $81,000 in checks were 1llagal kickback payments
macde as compensation for the referral of patients to Tran.

On or about and betwean September 18, 2014 and WNaovember 27,
2015, Defendant Alexander Klav Martinez did unlawfully aid, abet, and
conspire with Iran and David Cuong Manh Nguyen Lo fraudulently bill
at least 24 insuranve companies for pain management ssrvices,
including bant not limited to prescription drug benefits, toricology
goreanings, and compound crsam prascripﬁioﬁ drug benafits. Defendant
Alexander Kiev Martinez did so, by among other acts, providing Tran,
Nguyen, and others with patient referrals, patient information, and
other information necessary for Tran teo treat the patlents and for
Tran to process the paperwork needed to blll inaurers for the
treatment provided by Tran for pain management services. Defendant

Alexander Riav Martinezr was aware that Tran, ¥Nguyen, and ot g
15
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intended to and did wsend bills tc¢ multiple California Workers
Compensation insurers for the pain management services illegally
referred to Tran.
IIT
M. PEOERAL CASE

7 The defandanta understand that Conapiracy teo Commit Honest
Sarvices Mall Fraud, 3in wvioclatlion of 18 U.8.C. & 1349, to which the
defendants are pleading guilty 4in the fedaral case carrles the
following penalties as to Defendant Alexander Martinez:
A. a maximum 20 years in prison;
B. a maximum $25C,000 fina, or twice the grecss gain cr loss
derived Erom the offense;
<. a méﬂdatmry spacial assegsment of $108& per count; and
D. a term of supsrvised release of 3 years, Dafendant
Alaiandar Martine: understands that fallure to comply with|
any c¢f the conditlions of supervised relsase may result in
revoeation of au?erviaad releaée, requlring defendant to
gerve in prison, upon any auch rvevocation, all or part of
the atatutory maximum term of asupervised release for the

offense that resulted in such tarm of suparvisad release,

=

an order from the Court pursuant to 18 U.8.C. § 3663A that
Dafencdants  Alexander Martineé and Line of Sight make|
mandatery restitution to  the victims of the offense of
copviction, or the satata(s) of the victima(s). Defendants
Alexander Martinaz and Line of Sight understand that the
Court shall also order, if agreed to by the parties in this
pléa agreement, restitution to persons other than the
victims of the offenge of conviction.

F. an order of forfgitura of any preoperty, real or personal,
which conatitutes or is darived from proceeds traceable to

the offense.
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The defendants understand that Congpiracy to Commit Honest
Services Mail Fraud, in viclatdon of 18 U.3.C. § 1348, to which the

defendants are pleading guilty in the federal c¢ase carries the

following penalfiea aa to Defendant Line of Sight:

F a maximum 5 years of probation, and a minimum of 1 year of
prokation; :
B. a2 maximam fine of £500,000, or twice the gross galn or loss

derived from tha offanse;

C. a2 mandatory spaclal aszsessment of 5400 per ceount;

D. an order from the Court purauant to 1B U.S5.C., § 3863A that
deféndam? make restitution to the wvictim{s} of the offanse
of conviction, .or the sstate(s) of the wictina(a); and

E. forfelture of all property that constitutes ox 1s derived:
from procesds traceable to the offenss to which Defendant
is pleading guilty (18 U.5.C. § 981¢a) (1) {C) and 28 U.S.C.
§ 2461{c}).

. Defendant undarstazds that the Court may also order, if
agreed to by the parties in thias plea agreement, '

‘restitution to perscns other than the victim(s) of the
offense of conviction.
—
DEFENDAMT'H WAILVRER OF TRIAL MG?ET& IN FADEFRAL CASH

The defendants understand that this guilty plea walvea the right

Lo

A, Contlnne to plead hot gullty and require the Government to
prove the slements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt;

B, A speedy and publie trial by jury;

C. The assistance of counsel at all stages of trial;

o. Confront and crosz-axanine adverse witnesaes:

=

Tastify and present evidence and to have wltnesses testify
on bahalf of defandant; and,
P Mot testify or have any adverse inferences drawn from the

failore to teastlfy.
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| The defendants knowingly and wvoluntarily wailve any rights and
defenses the dafendants may have under the Excessive Fines Clause of
the Eighth Amandment to the United: W States Constitution to the
forfelture of property in this proceeding or any related civil
procesding.
v .
DEFENDANT ACKNCWLEDGES NO PRETRIAL RIGHT TO BR
H PROVIDED WITH IMPUACHMENT AND AFPFIRMATIVE DREFENSE INFORMAT ION

The USAD and SDCDAO represent that any .information eatablishing

the factual innocence of Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of
sight known to the undersigned prosecutors in this case has been
turned over to dafendant. The OSAD and SDCDAD will continue to
provide such information establishing the factual dnpnocence of
dafandant.

Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight understand that
"Lf this case proceeded to trial, the USAQ and SDCDAO would be required
to provide lmpeachment information relating to any informants or other
witnesses, In addition, if defendant ralsed an affirmative defense,
the USAD and SDCDAY would be required to provide informatlon in its
pessesgion that | supports such a defense. Defandants Alexander
Martinez and Line of Sight acknowledge, howevar, that by pleading
gailty, Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of 8ight will not be
provided thle informaticn, 1f any, and defendant also walves the right
to this Infermation. Finally, Defendants Alexander HMartinez and Line
of 8ight agree not to attempt to withdraw the guilty plea or to file a

collateral attack based on the existence of thisd informatlon.
Vi
DEFENDANTS' REPHESTNTATION THAY GUILTY
| PLEAS ARE KNOWING AKD VOLUNTARY
Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight represent that:

a. Defendahts Alexander Martinsz and Line of Sight have had a
full opportunity to didcuss all the facts and circumstances

of thls case with defense counsael and have a gar
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undarstanding of the chargas and the consesguencas of this
plea. Both defehdants understand that, by pleading guilty,
tha defendants may be giving up, and rendered ineligible to
raceive, valuable government bensfits and civic zights, such
aa the right to vote, the right %o posssss & firearm, the
right to hold office, snd the right to serve on a Jury.
Defendants Alexander Martinsz and Line of BSight further
understand that the conviction in this case may subject
defendant to varicus collateral consegquences, including but
not- limitad to deportation, removal or other adversa
ipmigration consequences; revocation of probation, parola,
or gupervised release in another cage; dsbarment from
JOTErnmanc contracting; and suspenaion or revocakbion of a
professional license, as well as civlil and acdministrative
liablility, nona of which will gerve as grounds to withdraw
dafandant’s gullty plea. _

B. No one has made any pzomisag or offered any rewards in
raturn for this guilty plea, other than those contained in|
this agresment or otherwise disclosed to the Court. |

£. No ona has threatened Defendants Alexandar Martinez or Line
of 8ight or Defendant Alexander Martinez's family to
induce this guilty plea. ‘

L. Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight are pleading
guilty because in truth and in fact the defendants are
guilty and for no other reason, - |

Vil
APFLICABILITY OF SENTENCING GUIDELINES

Defendants understand the sentence imposed will be based on the
factors sat forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). Defendants understand
further that in imposing the sentesnce, the aentencing Judgs mﬁst
consult the United States Sentencing Guidelines (Guidelinea) and take
them Jinto account. Defendants have discussed the Guidelines with

defense counsel and understand that the Guidelines are only adviewry,

Rlaa Agreement 19 : Cef, Initials )
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not mandatory, and the Court may impose g sentence more gevers or less
savers® than otherwise applicable under the Guidelines, wup to the
maximem in the statute of conviction. Defendants understand further
that the gentence cannct be determined untll a presentance report has
been prapared by the U.8. Probation Office and both defense counsel
and the USAQ have had an opportunity to revliew and challenge thea
presentence report. Nothing in thils plea agresment shéll be construed
as llmiting the CSAC's duty toe provide complete and accurate facts to
the district court and the 0.8. Probatlon Office.
Iy
SENTENCE I§ WITIIN 80LE DISCRETION OF JUDGR

This plsa agrsement i3 made pursuaht to Pederal Rule of Criminal
Procedure 11 () (1) (B). 7The defendants understand that the Senténce 13
within the sole discretion of the sgsentencing judge., The USAD has not
made and will not make any representation as to what santence the
defandants will rasgeive. Tha defendanta understand that the
sentencing judge may impose the maximum. sentence provided by statuta,
and is also aware that any eatimate of the probable asentence by
defensé counsal lo a predletion, not a promiga, and 1s not binding on
the Court. Likswlss, tha recommendation made by the USAD i3 not
binding oun the Court, and it is uncertain at this time what tha
defendants’ a=snterce will be. Tha defendants also have been advised
and understand that 1f the gentencing judge does not follow any of the
partises' sentencing recommendations, the dafendants nevertheless have
0o right to withdraw their plaas;

P4
PARTIRS ' SENTENCING RECCMMENDATIONG
A SENTENCING GUIDELINE CALCULATIONS
Although the parties understand that the Guidelines arxe only

advisory and just one of the factors the Court will conslder under 18
U.9.C. § 3553{a) in imposing a sentence, the parties will jointly

recommend the following Base Offense lLavel, BSpecific 0ffensa

Plea Agreemant - 20 | Def. Initials @_
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Characteristics, Adjustments and Dsparturas as to Defendant Alexander
Martinez: ‘_

1. Base Offense Level [§ 2Bl.1l 7

2. Intended loss more than $3.5 million +1.8

[§ 2B1.1(b) (1} (J)] |

3 Sophisticated Means [8 2BLl.L1l({b) (10} (C)] +2

4, Aggravated Role [§ 3Bl.l{a)] \ +3

5 Abuse of Position of Trust [§ 3B1.3] +2

6. Acceptance of Responsibility [§ 3E81.1] -3

The parties agrae that Pefendant Line of Sight cannot pay, and i3

not likely to be able (sven on an installment plan) te pay, the

minimum £ine aet by the Guidelinea for the offense conduct in the
federal case and the state cases, and therefore under U.S5.5.G.
§6 802.2(b) and 8£3.3, will recommend a reduced fire of $45,000.

o ACCERTANCE OF RESPONZIBILITY

Motwithstanding paragraph A above, the USAC will not be obligated|

to recommend any adjustment for Acceptance of Responsibility under|

7..8.6. 8§ 3rl.1 or B8CZ.3 if +the defendants engage in conduct
ingoneistent with acéeptanca of zrasponsibility including, but not
limited to, the following:

1. Fails to truthfully admit a camplete factual basis as
" atated in tha plea at the time the plea ia entered, or
falsely denies, or makes a statement Lnconsistent

with, tha factual baslia set forth in this agreement;

2. Falsely denies prior eriminal conduct or convicticns;

3. Is untruthful  with the Government, the Court or
probation officer;

q. Materially breaches thisz plea agreement in any way; or

5. Contssts or asslsts any third party in contesting the
forfeltura of property(iea) seized in comnection with

| this - case, and any property{ies} to which ths

' defendant has agreed to forfelt as set forth in the

attached forfeiture addendum. .
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C. FURTHER ADJUSTMENTS AND SENTENCE REDUCTIONS
INCLUDING THOSE UNDER 18 U.8.¢, § 3553

The parties agrea that the defendants may request or recommend

additional dawnward adjustmeﬁts, departures, lncluding criminal
jhistoxry departures undex USSG.§ 4A1.3, or sentence reductions under 18
7.8.C. § 3353. The USAQ may. oppode any downward adjustments,
departures and sentence reductions not set forth in Section X,
paragraph A above. -

b, HQ ADREIMINT AS TO CRIMINAL HISTORY CATRGORY

Tha parties have nw agreament a3 to Defendant Alexander
Martinez’s Criminal Hiastory Catagory.
5. TTACTUAL BASIS” AND “RELEVANT CONDUCT" INFORMATION

The partlies agraz that the facts Iin the "factual basis" section
of this agreement as to both the federal cass and the gtate cases are
trus, and may be considared as "relevant conduct” under US8G § 1B1.3
and ag the nature and circumstancas of theloffense under 18 0.5.C, §
3553 {a} (1), - |
' . PARTERS RECOMMENDATIONS RAGARDING CUSTOLY

ha parties agree thabt the USA0 will renommend that Defendant
Alexander Martinez be sentenced within the advisory guideline range
galculated above,

z. SPELCIAL ASSESSMENT/FINE/RESTITUTION/EORFEITURE

1. 8pecial Assessment

The parties will Jointly recommend that Defendant Alerander
Martinez pay a special assessment in the amount of $100.00 per count
of conviction in the federal case to be pald forthwith at the time of
santencing. Thae parties will jointly recommend that Dafendant Line of
Sight pay a apecial assessment in the amount of $400.00 per count of
convigtlon in the federal case to be paild forthwith at the time of
sentencing. The special assessments shall be pald through the office

of the Clerk of the District Court by bank or cashier’s check cor money
order mads payable to the “Clerk, United States District Court.”

Plea Agreement 22 Def, Initials ‘_@_
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2. Hestltution

The parties do not recommend imposition of a restitution order in
the federal case in light of the difficulty of determining the
individualized losgs amounts suffered by each victim ~due - to
befendants’ conduct, Sea 18 USC § 3553A(c) (3)(B). Howaver, any
agréement as to restitution hereln applies only to the federal case
and not the state cases. The defendanté understand Lhar rmstitutian
may pe ordered 1in the state cased pursuant to Defendant Alexander
Martinez’s guilty pleas in those matteras,

3, Fing

The parties do not recommend impoailtion of a fine upon Defendant|

Alexander Martinez dus to this defendant’s limited financial prospects
and because the cost of cellection, even taking into account the

Inmate Responsibility Program, likely would exceed the amounts that!

could reasonably be expected to be collected. As outlined above, thel

partieg will recommend that Defendant Line of 8ight pay a fine of|

545,000 within &0 months of pleading guilty. These fines sghall be

pald through the Office o¢f the Clerk of the District Court by bank or|

cashier’s check or meney order made payable to the “Clerk, United
States Dlstrict Court.”
4.  Forfelture

Defendantas agree ‘to forfait $5,62D.58. in funds from the Wells
Fargo bank account xxx-1808 In the name of Defendant Line of Sight,
Inc. as preocesds of their illegal conduct. Defendants consent and
agree to the entry of an Order o¢f forfelture for such property and
waive the requirements of Fedaral Rules of Criminal Procedure 32,2 and
43(a) regarding notice of the forfelture in the charging instrument,
announcement of the forfelture at sentencing, and incorporation of the
forfelture in the judgment. Defendanta understand that the forfeituyre
Qf agsets 1s part of the gsentence that may be lmposed in this case and
waive any failure by the Court to advise Defendants of this, pursuant

to Rule 11 (b) (1) (J}, at the time the Court accepts the guilty plea.

2
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Defandants further agree to waive all constitutional and
gtatutory challenges 1in any manner (including direct appeal, habeas
corpus, br any other means] to any forfelture carried out in
accordance with this agreement on any grounds, including that the
forfeiture constitutes an excessive fine or punishmsnt, Dafendants
agree to. take all steps as requested by the United States to pass
clear title to forfeltable asssts to the United States, and te testify
truthfully in any judiqial'forfeiture proceeding. |

Defendants agres that the forfeiture provisions of' thi5- plea
agreement . are  intended  to, and  will, survive  Defendants,
ﬂotwithstanding tha abatement of any underlying criminal conviction
after the exscution of this agreament. The forfeitability of any
pa&ticular proparty pursuant to this agreement shall be determined as
if Defendant had survived, and that determination shall be binding
upon Defendant’s helrs, successors and assigna until the agreed
forfeiture ls colliected in full.

H. SUPERVISED RELEASE

If the Court imposes a term of supervised release as to Defendant
Alexandsy Martinez, the partiear agree that Defendant Alexander
Martinez will not asek to reduce or terminate early the term of

supervised releass,
I

. DEfENDANT WAITVES APFEAL AND COLLATYRAL ATTACK
A, WAIVER OF RIGHT TO APPEAL CONMVICTION
In exchange for the concsagions by the USAO and SDCDAQ in the

federal and state casesz in this plea agreement, Defendants Alexander
Martinez and Line of S5ight waive, to the full extent of the law, any
right to appeai the convictions and sentence in either the federal or
state caseas.

B. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO COLLATERAL ATTACK

Dafendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight walve, to the

full extent of the law, any rtight te¢ collaterally attack the

Plea Agresmsnt 24 Def. Initials ggg




WD e

Ln

L¥o I v« S B« 4

10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17
18
19
20°
21
22
23
24
25
2]
27
28

conviction and/or sentence, except for a post-conviction collataral
attack based on a claim of ineffactive aassistance of counsal.

cC. QRJISCTICNS TQ UN]JTED STATES’ RECDMMENDATION

1f Defendants Alexander Martinez or Line of Sight believes the
recommnendation by the USAO0 or SDCDAQC ia not in accord with this plea
agreement; the defendants will object at the time of sentencing;
otherwlse the objection will be desmed waivad.
XIx |
BREACE OF THE PLEA NGREEMENT
A. MATERIAL BREACH OF PLEA AGREEMENT

Defendants Alexander Martirez and Line of Sight acknowledge,
understand, and agres that 1if the defendants violate or faill to

perform any of their obligatlons under this agresment, such violatian

or fallure to perform will constitute a material breach of this

agreemant.

' Defsndants Alexander Martinez and ZLine of Sight acknowledge,
undarstand, and agree further that the fellowing non-exhaustive list
of conduct by the dafendants unquestionably conastitutes a material
breach of this plea agresment:

1. Falling to plead guilty pursuan:t to this agreement:

2.‘ Withdrawing the gullty plea or attempting to withdraw
the guilty plea; | 7

3, Falling to fully accept responsibility as established
in Section X, paragraph B, above;

Failing to appear in court; ‘

5. Falling to abide by any lawful court order related to
this case;

6. Appealing cor collaterally ,éttacking the sentence or|
convictlion in wviolation of Section XI of this plea
agreament; or '

7. Engaging in additional criminal conduct from the time

of arrest until the time of sentencing.

{ ‘ !
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B, CONSEQUENCES OF BREACH
In the event of a naterial bhreach by eilther defendant of thie

plea agreement, Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight will
not be abkle to enforce any of its provisions, and the USAQ and SDCDAC
will be rellieved 0f all obligations under this plea agreemant. For
example, the USAD or SDCDAO may pursus any charges including those
that were digmissed, promised to be dismiased, or not £iled as a
result of this agréemant. Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of
gight agree that any atatute of limitaticns relating to such charges
is tolled as bf the date of this agreameni; Defendants Alexander
Martinez gnd Line of Sight also waive any double jeopardy defense to
such charges, In addition, the USAD or SDCDAC may move to get aside
the defandants’ gullty pleag. Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line
of Sight may nolt withdraw their guilty pleas based on the pursult of
remedieas for theilr breach by the USAO or SDCDAD.
XIIT
COMPLATE WALVER OF PLEA-DISCUSZION EXCLUSION RIGHTS

In exchange for the concessions in this agrsement, Defeadants
Alexander Martinez and Lins of Sight agree that: (i) the stipulated
factual basis statements in thilg agreement; (11) any statements made
by the defendants, under oath, at the guilty plea hearings in federal
and sate court; and (iid) any evidence derived from such statements,
are admigsible againast elther dsfendant in the piosecutidn’s case-in~-
chlef and at any cther stage of the procesdings in any prosscution of
or acticn agalnst elther daefendant on the current charges and/or any
other charges that the USAC and SDCDAD may pursue againét the
defendanta. Addifionallyf Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of
Sight knowingly, wvoluntarilly, and intelligently walive any argument
under the United States Constitution, eny atatute, Federal Rule of
Evidence 410, Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11(f), and/or any
other federal or California rule, that these statements or any
évidence derived from these statements should be suppressed or are

inadmlissible. The walver of the aforementioned rights by Defeggants

26 »
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Alexander Martinez and Line of 8Sight is effective as soon as the
parties sign this agreement, and ls not contingent upon a federal or
state court ultimately accepting the defendants’ guilty pleas.
XIv
SUBSTANTIAL ASSTHTANCE

A, If Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight attempt
to assiszt in the lanvestigation and prosecutlon of others, there is no
guarantee that this future cooperaticn, if any, will be deemed
“substantial,” or whether it will merit a downward departure Ffrom ths
Sentencing Guidelines,

8. If requested by the USAD or SDCDAO, Defendants Alexander
Martinez agress to be interviewsd again by federal and state law
esnforcement agents and .attorneys and toc tell eﬁerything befendants
Alexander Martinez and Linz of Sight knows about every person involved
presently or in the past .in the charged criminal offense(s), as well
as other violations ¢f law. Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of
8ight a;ao agrees to produce all documents and other evidence in their
peasession or control related to these violations.

C. Defendant Alexander Martinez agrees not to do any undercover
work or tape record any conversations or gather evidence unless
instructed by the agent assligned to Defendant. Defendants Alexander
Martinez and Line of Slght can be prosscuted for any criminal activity
undertaken without instruction.

D. Pefendant Alexander Martinez agreesg to provide statements
under penalty of -perjury and to testify bafore any federal or state
grand jury, and at any pretrial, trial, or post-trial proceedings in
faderal or state court, Defendant will provide complete,’ truthful,
and accurate information and testimony. Defendant agrees to submit to
a polygraph exanlnation to test the truthfulness of  Defendant’s
atatements, upon request by the USAC or SDCDAQ. _

B, As discussed in section XIII above, the factual admissions

in this plea agreement and any statements made by Lefendants Alexandear

Plea Agrasment 21 Def., Initials
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evidence derived from them) are adinissible against the defendants in
thia and all future proceedings. However, the USAQ0 and SDCDAD agree
that, if the defendants fully comply with this plea agreement, the
USAD and SDCDAC will not make use of any of their statements to law
enforcement in the course of cooperatlon and during the period of
post-plea cooperation in any further prosecution of the defendants Ffor
any offense, or in Defendant’s sentencing as provided in USSG § 1Bl.8.
If Defendants Alexander Martinaz and Line of Sight do not fully comply
wlth this plea agreement, all statements made by the defendants

befors, during, and after this plea agreement, and any leads or

evidence derived from such statements, can be used against the

defendants and are admissible in court,

r. Statements made by Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of
Sight pursuant to this plea agresment are not statements “made in the
course of any proceadings uvnder Rule 11 of thes Federal Rules of
Criminal Procedure” and are not statements “made in the course of plea
discuasslons.”

G. If the USAO decidea that Defendants Alexander Martinez and
Line of Sight  have provided additional substantial assistance after
the -date of this agreement, and have fully compliedrwith this plea
agreement, 1t will file a motion for a downward departure undar
18 U.8.C. § 3553 and/or USSG § 5K1.1. Defendants Alexander Martinez|
and Line of 8ight understand that the starting point for any
substantial asslstance departure will be the pre-departure Guidelines
range. Defendants Alexander Martinez and Linerof Sight acknowledge
that even 1f the U5A0 makes a motion, the Court may reject tha UIA0’'s
motion and recommendatlion for departpfe and refuse to depart downward,
and neither defendant would be allowed to withdraw their'guiltftpleas;

B. If the USARO's decides to make a substantial agsistance
motion, 1t will inform ‘the sentencing judge of: (1) this plea
agreement; (2) the nature and extent of any asslstance provided by
Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight in the federal and

. 28 .
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state cases; and (3) all information in the possaession of the USAQ
relevant to aantencihg,

I. If Defendants Alexander Martinez or Line of Sight provide
materially falss, incomplete, or misleading testimony or information,
or breach this plea agreamant in ahy other way, the USAO or SDCDAO may
prosscute the defandants_in‘connaction with all criminal violations of
which the USA0 and S8DCDAD are aware, as sat forth In Bection XII
above, inmcluding a prosescution for false statements, perjury, and/or
obstfuction of jugtice. The USAQ wmay also pursus any other remedy for
breach of the plea agreement, ag sst forth in Sectlon XII above, Any
progsecution or gentence resulting from a breach of this plea agreement
may be based on informatlon provided by Defendanta Alexander Martinez
and Line of Sight,

v
ENTIRE AGREXEMENT

The plea agreaments in ths state casgs, which ars incorporated
herein, Gtogether with tha plea agrzement iIn the federal case embody
the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any other

agraement, written or oral.

Xyl
MﬂDIFIéATION OF ACRETMENT MUST BE IN WRITING

No modification of this plea agreement shall be effective unless

in writing signed by all parties.

IVIT
© DETERCANT AND COUNSEL FULLY UNDERSTAND ACRESMENT

By signing this agxeemant, Defondants Alexander Martinez and Line
of 8ight cerﬁify that +the defendants have read it. Defendants
Alexander Martinez and Line of 8ight have discussed the terms of this
agreement with defense counsel and fully understands 1lts meaning and

effect.
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XVIIT

DEFENDANT SATIIFIED WITH COUNSE]L

Defendants Alexander Martinez and Line of Sight have consulted

with counsel and are satisfled with cocunael's representation. Thisg is

the independent opinion of Defendants Alexander Martinsz and Line of

Sight (and its Board of Directors), and thelr counsel did not advise

the defendants about what to say in this regard.

“‘“\5\20]@

DATED )

w18 {20l
DATED
DATED

C// /7///

DATED

4///‘?/!‘

DATED

g/l

DATED

Plaa Agresm=nt

LAURA E. DUFFY
United Sta Hktorney

—a

.;ianifg_i?fégkorney
VLo 7

VALERIE H. CHW”
Agaistant U,6. Aftorney

/AR5
:zmzzzf&\w

BONNIE DUMANIS
San Dlego County District Attornsy

HN AHTLEGTT
Deputy_District Attornay

%z\:“
‘“‘ﬁENARO RAMIREZ
;ﬁfyuty District Attorney

PERDRO BERNAL
Deputy District Attorney
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DATED | I KNUPSFOMNSON .
Counasael for ALEXANDER MARTINEZ

IN ADDITION 70 THE FOREGOING PROVISIONE TO WHICHE I AGRER, I SWEAR
UHDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE PFACTS IN THE “FACTUAL BASIS"™ SECTION
ARQVE ARE TRUR, 1

L\\\D\\b - .

DATED ‘ . : ALEXANDER MARTINE?Z
‘ Defendant

pefendant’s Signature! As corporate representative for Defendant Line
of 8ight, I have consulted with counsel for the dafendant and fully
understand all rights of the Defendant with respect to this Plea
Agreement. Further; I fully understand all rights with reapect to 18
U.8.C. § 3553 and the provislons of the Sentencing Guidellines that may
apply 4in this case. T have read this Plea Agreement and carefully
reviewed every part of 1t with counsel for the defendant. I understand
thlis agreement and voluntarily accept it on behalf of the defendant. I
have valid aunthority to sign on behalf of /fthe Dafendant.

"\\ w |l

DATED ' -

President
Defendant LINE OF SIGHT, INC.

3
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pefense Coungsel’s Signature: I am counsel for defendant Line of Sight
in this matter. I have fully explained to defendant’s representative
the Defendant’s rights with respect to this Plea Agreement. Further, I
have reviewed 18 U.S.C. § 3553 and the Sentencing Guldelines, and I
nave fully explained to the defendant the provisions that may apply in
this casa, I have carefully reviewed every part of this Plea Agreement
with the defendant. To my knowledge, the defendant's decislon to into
this agreement 1ls an informed and voluntary one, and one by agent with
valid authority to sign on behalf of Defendant.

e ——

.—f“’.)

“H \f)'/ (& =
DATED ) ﬁiﬂ‘)m{r

Al

Counsal for Defendant
LINE O® SIGHT, INC.
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